QBER'(P.

Dinas a Sir Abertawe

Hysbysiad o Gyfarfod

Cyngor Abertawe Fe'ch gwahoddir i gyfarfod
Swansea Council

.__..-—'""'—.—___

Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Abertawe - Grwp

Partneriaeth
Lleoliad: Ystafell Bwyligor 3A, Neuadd y Ddinas, Abertawe

Dyddiad: Dydd Mawrth, 21 Tachwedd 2017
Amser: 12.30 pm

Cadeirydd: Cynghorydd Rob Stewart

Agenda

Rhif y Dudalen.

1 Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.

2 Datgeliadau o fuddiannau personol a rhagfarnol.
www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests

3 Cofnodion.

To approve and sign the Minutes of the previous meeting(s) as a
correct record.

4 Cwestiynau gan y Cyhoedd.

5 Y diweddaraf am gynnydd y cynllun lles a blaenoriaethau
blaenorol y BGC 2016/17.
e Cam-drin Domestig
e Canol y Ddinas/Datblygu Economaidd
e Annibyniaeth Pobl Hyn
e Dechrau Da mewn Bywyd

6 Strategaeth Cynnwys.
Joanne Portwood

7 Dinas Hawliau Dynol.
Chris Sivers


file://ccwsvmprmgov01/mgDataRoot/AgendaItemDocs/8/3/2/AI00015238/www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests

8 Ymateb i lythyr Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol. 25-39
Chris Sivers

9 Adroddiadau er gwybodaeth. 40 - 43
. Lles yng Nghymru: Cynllunio heddiw ar gyfer gwell yfory
https://futuregenerations.wales/wp-
content/uploads/2017/07/FGCW_Well-being_in_Wales-
Planning today for a better tomorrow 2017FINALENG.pdf

J Cludiant Cymunedol: Cyflwyno lles ar gyfer y bobl.

Cyfarfod nesaf: Dydd Mawrth, 16 lonawr 2018 ar 12.30 pm

Hors Lo

Huw Evans

Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Dydd Mawrth, 15 Tachwedd 2017

Cyswllt: Y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd Ffén (01792) 636923

k{'{a- Cyngor Abertawe
e Swansea Council
:_.-.-—--.____


https://futuregenerations.wales/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/FGCW_Well-being_in_Wales-Planning_today_for_a_better_tomorrow_2017FINALENG.pdf
https://futuregenerations.wales/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/FGCW_Well-being_in_Wales-Planning_today_for_a_better_tomorrow_2017FINALENG.pdf
https://futuregenerations.wales/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/FGCW_Well-being_in_Wales-Planning_today_for_a_better_tomorrow_2017FINALENG.pdf

Swansea Public Services Board — Membership 2017/18

Statutory Members (Core Group and Partnership Group)

Councillor Rob Stewart (Chair) - Leader of the City & County of Swansea (CCS)

Andrew Davies (Vice Chair) - ABMU LHB

Councillor Jan Curtice - Mid and West Fire and Rescue Service

Phil Roberts - Chief Executive, City & County of Swansea

Designated Representatives:

Sian Harrop-Giriffiths, Chief Officer - ABMU LHB

Roger Thomas, Assistant Chief Fire Officer - Mid & West Wales Fire & Rescue Service

Martyn Evans, Chief Executive — Natural Resources Wales

Invited Participants (Core Group and Partnership Group)

Dyfed Alsop — Welsh Government

Martin Jones - Chief Superintendent, South Wales Police

Amanda Carr - Swansea Council for Voluntary Service

Alun Michael — Police and Crime Commissioner

Chris Sivers - Safer Swansea Partnership

Invited Participants (Partnership Group)

Clive Lloyd - Deputy Leader of the City & County of Swansea, CCS

Mark Child - Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing, CCS

Andrea Lewis - Cabinet Member for Housing, Energy & Building Services, CCS

Jen Raynor - Cabinet Member for Children, Education and Life-Long Learning, CCS

June Burtonshaw / Mary Sherwood - Cabinet Member for Future Generations, CCS

Erika Kirchner — Chair of Transformation and Future Council Policy Development and Delivery
Committee, CCS

Bonnie Navarra - Police and Crime Commissioner South Wales Police (designated representative)

Eirian Evans - National Probation Service

David Bebb - Wales Community Rehabilitation Company

Sandra Husbands, Director of Public Health, Public Health Wales

Hilary Dover - Planning Group

Raymond Ciborowski - Swansea University

Anna Jones - University of Wales Trinity Saint David

Mark Jones - Gower College Swansea

Helen Matthews - Job Centre Plus

Hywel Evans - Regional Business Forum

Keith Baker - Swansea Economic Regeneration Partnership

Philip McDonnell - Swansea Environmental Forum

Mike Phillips - Research Group

To be confirmed - DVLA

To be confirmed - Swansea Learning Partnership




Agenda Iltem 3

City and County of Swansea

Minutes of the Swansea Public Services Board -
Partnership Group

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council  Committee Room 3A, Guildhall, Swansea
f

Tuesday, 19 September 2017 at 12.30 pm
Present:

Joanne Abbott-Davies, Mental Health Service

Amanda Carr, Swansea Council for Voluntary Service

Mark Child, Cabinet Member for Health & Wellbeing, Swansea Council
Andrew Davies, ABMU LHB

Craig Flannery, Mid & West Wales Fire & Rescue Service

Penny Gruffydd, Swansea Council

Sandra Husbands, Public Health Wales

Anna Jones, University of Wales Trinity St. David's

Martin Jones, South Wales Police

Peter Jordan, Natural Resources Wales

Clive Lloyd, Deputy Leader, Swansea Council

Allison Lowe, Democratic Services Officer, Swansea Council

Philip McDonnell, Swansea Environmental Forum

Bonnie Navarra, South Wales Police & Crime Commissioners Office
Hamish Osborn, Natural Resources Wales

Joanne Portwood, Swansea Council

Amy Richmond, Mid and West Wales Fire & Rescue Service

Phil Roberts, Chief Executive, Swansea Council

Mary Sherwood, Cabinet Member for Future Generations, Swansea Council
Max Stokes, Natural Resources Wales

Roger Thomas, Mid & West Wales Fire & Rescue Service

Apologies for Absence

Dyfed Alsop, Welsh Government

June Burtonshaw, Cabinet Member for Future Generations, Swansea Council
Raymond Ciborowski, Swansea University

Jan Curtice, Mid & West Wales Fire Authority

Dr Jane Davidson, University of Wales Trinity Saint David

Hilary Dover, PSB Planning Group

Eirian Evans, National Probation Service

Martyn Evans, Natural Resources Wales

Sian Harrop-Griffiths, ABMU LHB

Mark Jones, Gower College Swansea

Jennifer Raynor, Cabinet Member for Children, Education & Lifelong Learning,
Swansea Council

Chris Sivers, Swansea Council

Rob Stewart, Leader, Swansea Council

Andrew Davies (Vice Chair) Presided

Page 1



11

12

13

14

Minutes of the Swansea Public Services Board - Partnership Group (19.09.2017)
Cont'd

Disclosures of Personal & Prejudicial Interest.

No personal interests were declared.

Public Question Time.

The following questions were submitted via email by Dereck Roberts:

The Older People’s Commissioner refers to the provision of public toilets and good
public transport and their importance to older people (and more generally).

The City Deal does not include public transport development. How is public
transport going to be improved in the Swansea Bay Area?

In previous responses the PSB acknowledged that access to Public Toilets was
important. How is this being addressed in the City Centre re-development proposals
and more generally?

Phil Roberts would provide a written response to Mr Roberts in his absence.
Minutes of the PSB Core Group Meeting 17 August 2017.

Agreed that the Minutes of the Swansea Public Services Board Core Group Meeting
be approved as a correct record.

Update on the Well Being Plan.

Penny Gruffydd on behalf of Chris Sivers provided an update on the Local Wellbeing
Plan.

She stated the progress undertaken to date in developing the draft Well-being
objectives and outlined the next phase to be undertaken which would involve
shaping and writing the Plan.

A discussion ensued around the following:

» The possibility of utilising the regional co-ordinator to co-ordinate the
consultation process to avoid duplication;

» A discussion regarding the co-ordination of objectives with Neath / Port Talbot
CBC & Bridgend CBC would be beneficial due to the possibility of regional
working;

» The potential impact of the implementation of Universal Credit and the
requirement for more joint working, focused on early intervention;

» Ultilising the driver diagrams to map the various requirements to underpin
each of the objectives.

Page 2



15

16

Minutes of the Swansea Public Services Board - Partnership Group (19.09.2017)
Cont'd

Actions:

1) Partners to contact Objective Leads if they would like to be involved in the
development of specific objectives;

2) Partners to provide information of networks / platforms which they host and
through whom the PSB can engage during the Consultation process (by the
end of September);

3) Penny Gruffydd to circulate the current list of Organisational Leads so people
can add the key contacts into it (responses required by the end of the week).

Presentation and Discussion: Well-Being: What Have Natural Resources Ever
Done for Us?

Hamish Osborn and Max Stokes, Natural Resources Wales provided a presentation
entitled “What has nature ever done for us”.

Following the presentation a discussion commenced on how each organisation could
embed nature in terms of green space and trees into its (plans/objectives?) in order
to make Swansea a better place to work and live in order to promote improved
health and wellbeing.

The comments made would be fed into a task force meeting led by Max Stokes,
Objective Lead for ‘Working with Nature’.

The Chair thanked the Officers for their informative presentation.
Update on PSB Priorities. (Verbal)

The sponsors provided a verbal update on the PSB Periority Projects.
Ageing Well

Roger Thomas, on behalf of Chris Sivers reported that:

Ageing Well had been agreed as one of the 4 objectives set out in Swansea’s
Wellbeing Plan.

UK Day for Older People Event was due to take place on 19" October 2017 in
Swansea Grand, this would be used as an engagement opportunity to help shape
the Ageing Well Plan and Swansea’s Wellbeing Plan.

This event will be followed up by a more focused partnership workshop in November,
to set out the next phase of the Ageing Well Plan.

An Ageing Well engagement plan, setting out a proposed structure for engaging a
broad range of older people has been drafted and is being consulted on with groups
across Swansea.

Both ABMU and Swansea Council are working towards a rights based approach for
older people, ABMU hope to launch their Older Person’s Charter in December 2017,

Page 3



Minutes of the Swansea Public Services Board - Partnership Group (19.09.2017)
Cont'd

whilst Swansea Council was working with Swansea University to draft a plan an
implementation plan.

Dementia Friendly Swansea

All Local PSB core members had achieved the BSI standard and were officially
recognised by the Alzheimer’s Society as working towards being Dementia Friendly.

As all organisations had different footprints it’s difficult to be precise, but we estimate
that around 7500 public sector staff in Swansea are Dementia Friends including over
1200 front facing Council staff.

Making Every Contact Count

Three task and finish groups have been established to focus on Training
Development, Evaluation and Pilot and Promotion and Publicity. They met for the
first time in September and hope to have outline proposals drafted by late
November.

The success of the project relies on the commitment of all partners to adopt this
approach and train up appropriate staff to promote the key messages, to ensure
expectations are clear a Consensus Statement is being drafted and will be discussed
at the next Ageing Well Steering group meeting.

Expansion of Local Area Coordination

We are currently recruiting for five Local Area Coordinators, four have been
publically advertised and one post is to be recruited from Mid and West Wales Fire
Service through a secondment.

Domestic Abuse

Jo Portwood provided an update on behalf of Chris Sivers:

Key 3 Project Update

. Multi-agency Project Steering Group has been established and is actively
progressing the project
o A draft referral process has been developed, following the same value steps

as the Domestic Abuse Hub — 1. Understand the issue, 2. Understand the
options and solutions, 3. Do the work, 4. Review the work.

o In the model, one agency will lead on providing support for the individual, and
‘broker’ in support from others as appropriate
o The purpose is to streamline support and ensure that people who need

support get access to it at an earlier stage, and to reduce potential harm.
. Data Sharing (WASPI) has been developed and is in the process of being
agreed.
o Progress is as anticipated now that we have the worker in post.

Page 4



17

18

Minutes of the Swansea Public Services Board - Partnership Group (19.09.2017)
Cont'd

Good Start in Life

Andrew Davies reported that a large part of the work for the Best Start Campaign
had been around the Swansea Jack cartoon family and helping families access the
services around the campaign including GP’s and pharmacies. In the future the
focus would be on first 1000 days. An event was scheduled for 27 November —
further information would be circulated.

The Jig-so project was going from strength to strength and receiving National profile.
The ABMU would be funding a Penderi Early Years worker.

City Centre / Economic Development

Phil Roberts reported that planning had been secured for the City Deal project which
included the Arena, Hotel, public realm. The procurement notice for the Hotel had

received a good response. Phase 1 would commence in Autumn 2018.

A report would be going to Cabinet in the near future in relation to the re-
development of Castle Gardens.

Kingsway works and public realms work were planned prior to and following
Christmas.

City Centre Wellness Centre
Phil Roberts reported that funding for the feasibility study had been secured by
Welsh Government with a recommendation to look carefully at the City Centre site.
The Health Board would consider the report in due course.
For Information Reports:
Agreed:
1. Minutes of the PSB Partnership Group held on 18 July 2017.
2. Letter to PSB Chairs — Assessment of Local Well-being: Older People’s
Commissioner for Wales Overview.
Any Other Business.
Action — The need to ensure that the description of the act is included on all future

PSB agendas as suggested in the Partnership Group meeting held on 18 July 2017
by Jane Davidson was reiterated.

The meeting ended at 2.24 pm

Chair

Page 5



Agenda Item 6

Swansea Public Services Board - Involvement Strategy
Introduction

1. The purpose of this paper is to outlines Swansea Public Service Board’s approach
to involvement (engagement and consultation) following the publication of its well-
being plan.

2. This approach builds upon the engagement and consultation work undertaken prior
to the development of plan and the draft objectives during the stakeholder workshops
run by Alan Netherwood (Netherwood Sustainable Futures) commissioned by the
PSB in June and July 2017.

Statutory Requirements

3. The statutory guidance on involvement (engagement and consultation) is outlined
in Shared Purpose Shared Future (Chapter 4):

“In preparing both its assessment of local well-being and its local well-being plan,
each public services board is required to consult fully with:

e the Commissioner;

e the Board's invited participants;

its other partners; such of the persons who received but did not accept an
invitation from the board under Section 30 as the board considers appropriate;
the local authority's overview and scrutiny committee;

relevant voluntary organisations as the board considers appropriate;
representatives of persons resident in the area;

representatives of persons carrying on business in the area;

trade unions representing workers in the area;

such persons with an interest in the maintenance and enhancement of natural
resources in the board's area, as the board considers appropriate; any other
persons who in the opinion of the board, are interested in the improvement of
the area's economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being.

4. Prior to publishing their assessment of local well-being, Public Service Boards are
required to produce and make available a copy of their draft assessment for
consultation, which should last for at a minimum of 12 weeks.

5. The statutory guidance on involvement (engagement and consultation) also makes
reference to taking into the ‘Citizen Voice’:

“Citizen engagement should go beyond participation in community planning. Citizen
voice can be a powerful tool for understanding where system failings are occurring,
where lack of coordination between service providers is wasting resources without
improving outcomes, for redesigning services around people, and for scrutinizing
service effectiveness ... It is important to note that a large number of the population,
particularly those who are under-represented and hard to reach, do not naturally
belong to groups and feel their voices are not heard ....Great care should be taken to

Page 6



ensure that no perception could reasonably be formed that a board gave a
disproportionate amount of weight in considering the responses of any one of the
consultees, or that a community of interest’s views were given too much emphasis.

Definitions of involvement, engagement, consultation and participation

6. In order to build a sound foundation for Swansea PSB’s involvement (consultation
and engagement strategy) plan, it is necessary to agree collective terminology and
concepts for the well-being plan - because different organisations will use a variety of
terminology to mean similar things.

7. For the purpose of the well-being plan, the PSB have adopted the following
definitions;

Involvement: A broad concept used to refer to different ways of including people in
our well being plan. There are different levels of involvement which can range from
just giving people information about our plan, to participation which means including
people in the processes of our plan from a very early stage and active involvement in
the development of policy, service planning and review.

Consultation: A formal process by which policy makers and service providers ask for
the views of interested groups and individuals.

Engagement: An active and participative process by which people can influence and
shape policy and services that includes a wide range of different methods and
techniques.

Participation: People being actively involved with policy makers and service planners
from an early stage of policy and service planning and review.

Figure 1
Levels of Involvement

Participation
in the early
stages of the

Giving Consulting

information on draft Engagement

Co-

in deciding

o production
on priorities

process and
setting the

agenda

to raise plans and
awareness policies

Page 7



8. Figure 1 above is a simple illustration of different levels of involvement!. For
example, the first level of involvement is simply giving people information about a plan,
raising awareness and telling people about its existence. This is the easiest and most
straight forward level of involvement, but there is often limited or no opportunity for
people to feed their responses back on the plan and change its content.

9. The second level of involvement is consultation which we have taken to mean as a
formal process for people to feedback their views and opinions on a plan. Structured
questionnaires are a common method which are used for formal consultation
processes, because in theory they can reach a relatively large number of people and
the results can be easily analysed. Although feedback from formal consultations can
be used to inform and change the plan, the use of structured questionnaires as a
method of consultation pre-determines what people might think are important about a
plan. For example, people may be asked to rank the importance of draft objectives
which have already been devised with little, or a limited opportunity to identify other
issues or make other comments which they think are important. In addition, formal
consultations also frequently ask for opinions about the process e.g is it easy to read,
well laid out etc, which whilst is important information itself in terms of improving the
plan, it perhaps not as significant as the priorities within the plan in itself.

10. The third level of involvement is engagement which we have taken to mean as an
active and participative process by which people can influence and shape policy and
services and includes a wide range of different methods and techniques. The level of
involvement can include focus groups, workshops, interviews, network events and
wide range of other participative methods which suit the needs and preference of the
people involved. This level of involvement is much more complex and resource
intensive than the previous two levels, however most would argue that it is much more
effective in involving people because methods are devised to suit their needs and their
involvement is required to influence the core element, priorities and objectives within
the plan.

11. The fourth level of involvement is participation which we have taken to mean being
actively involved with policy makers and service planners from an early stage of policy
and service planning and review. Although this is similar to the previous level of
engagement, this is different by recognizing the involvement of people very early in
the development of the plan and the ability to influence the agenda. For example, this
level of involvement relates to being able to influence whether a plan is produced, or
not, what it should include or not and broader implications, rather than simply influence
some of the priorities within the plan.

12. The fifth level of involvement is co-production which is taken to mean a relationship
where professionals and citizens share power to design, plan and deliver support
together, recognising that both partners have vital contributions to make in order to
improve quality of life for people and communities

Embedding the five ways of working in our approach to consultation and
engagement

1 For more sophisticated explanations see articles related to the Ladder of Participation

Page 8



12. Involvement is one of the five ways of working underpinning the Future
Generations Act (Wales) 2016 and our well-being plan. However, in order to work
towards a participative framework in the future we have also considered how the five
ways of working can be embedded in our approach to consultation and engagement.

13. Table 1 below identifies issues considered by Swansea’s PSB in relation to the
five ways of working and implications for consultation and engagement.

Table 1

The Five Ways of Working and Implications for Consultation and Engagement
Ways of Working Implications for Consultation and Engagement
Involvement Consider the nature of involvement. Different levels

of involvement and methods of involvement.
Identify strengths and gaps in relation to
involvement with this plan. Identify best practice
and a mixture of methods to improve long
participation in the long term.

Collaboration Work with partners to develop our approach to
involvement. Recognise different strengths and
weaknesses. Take into account different strategies,
principles and requirements to inform a partnership
perspective. Share learning and resources to
improve long term participation.

Long Term Identify lessons learnt from the process and the
wider evidence base. Develop a long term
participation strategy and plan.

Prevention Ensure this principle if taken into account in any
involvement activities. For example, this may mean
considering the causes and/or drivers for key
issues/ priorities, in addition to the issue itself
Integration ]Consider an holistic approach to both the issue and

process] Comment [GP1]: For me this is also
about understanding the opportunities
for engaging on multiple issues or seeing
and engaging on the inter-relationships
between issues.

14. Our approach to involvement (consultation and engagement) has been informed
by the National Principles for Public Engagement in Wales?, the Principles for Working

with Communities?, the Practitioners’ Manual for Public Engagement* and the National
Standards for Children and Young People’s Participation® Applying the National
Principles for Public Engagement in our approach to consultation and
engagement

2 https://participation.cymru/en/principles/

3 http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/communities/principles-for-working-with-communities/?lang=en

4 https://participation.cymru/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/practitioners-manual-for-public-engagement.pdf

5 http://www.childreninwales.org.uk/resource/participation-standards/

Page 9


https://participation.cymru/en/principles/
http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/communities/principles-for-working-with-communities/?lang=en
https://participation.cymru/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/practitioners-manual-for-public-engagement.pdf
http://www.childreninwales.org.uk/resource/participation-standards/

. . . e We will be clear about our conultation and engagement process
Enagement IS effeCtlvely de5|gned * We will be clear about what can be achieved

to make a difference ¢ We will measure the difference that consultation and engagement
makes

o)l =i [alo Rl = o IERENZE §V6 o [<H ) » We will take care to ensure that anyone who has an interest in the

. . well-being plan is identified and a chance to be involved
affected to be involved if they = ¢ We will identify and work with different community and special

choose interest groups

Engagement is planned and * We will consider the most suitable way of engagement, before any

. . . enagement activity is underatken
delivered in a tlmew and e We will use a variety of different methods to match people's different

appropriate way prefences and ability to take part

. * We will check with our partners to seee if they have information which
Work with relevant partner can help

organisations ¢ We will work with our partners to develop a partnership approach to
consultation and enagement

The information provided VI Rsy=0 ] © We will producing an accessible and easy read version of the plan
. . * We will produce information in English and Welsh and ensure that the
Jargon free' approprlate and information is culturally and religously sensitive

understanable ¢ We will not over burden people with irrelevent information

. . ¢ We will identify any potentail barriers for people to take part
Make it easier for pe0p|e to take ¢ We will work torwards removing any potential barriers

pa rt * We will employ different methods of engagement and consultation for
people with particulatr needs or preferences

e We will seek to makes people's experience of taking part a positive
Enable people to take part experience

effective|y ¢ We will seek to build people's confidence and skills during consultation
and engagement, if appropriate

Engagment is given the right ¢ We will ensure any consultation andengement activities we undertake

are approriately planned and resourced
resources and support to be e we will ensure that there is high level sign up and support from

effective leadership for consultation and engement activities

e We will ensure that there is timely and appropraite feedback on the
results of our consultation and engagment activities and how they

People are told the impact of
their contribution impact upon the plan

Learn and share lessons to * We will evaluate people's experiences of consulation and engagement
. with the plan
improve the Aheeses of ¢ We will identify lessons learnt and improve our future appriach to
engagment consultation and engagement.

Action Plan

Page 10



Stakeholders How Who When Notes
(i)Future Meeting with Chris 25t
Generations Leadership Sivers, October
Commissioner Team Hilary
Dover, the
Leader
and
Andrew
Davies
Email and then Rhian Launch Draft
questionnaire Miller & Jo | Nov 21st questionnaire
(via PSB web Portwood anticipated 26t
page ) October
Any other type of
consultation and
engagement with
FGC Office ?
(i) The Board’s PSB Partnership | Chair of Ongoing | Views will be
invited participants | meetings PSB and sought from
Vice Chair invited
of PSB participants on
behalf of
Email and then Rhian Launch organisations
questionnaire Miller & Jo | Nov 21st | and the views of
(via PSB web Portwood many people /
page ) employees within
Others ? the organisations
of invited
participants.
Do we need
something more
in-depth for the
Board in relation
to the plan ?
Or should this be
part of a review/
lessons learnt in
the future.
(iii) The PSBs other | Email /semi Rhian Launch Explore the
partners; such of structured Miller & Jo | 21st reasons why they
the persons who interviews by Portwood | November | did not accept
received but did not | telephone the invitation

accept from the
board under

from the board
/barriers to

Page 11




Section 30 as the
board considers
appropriate an
invitation from the

participation ?

(iv) The Local Scrutiny Chris 13th Discussion with
Authority's meetings. Sivers December | Scrutiny about
overview and the well-being
scrutiny committee plan.
Chris Tbc Views sought
Sivers from the Cabinet
about Elected
Member
involvement in
the well-being
plan and longer
term
participation.
Future
Generations
portfolio, unique
to Swansea.
(v) Voluntary and SCVS link to Lauren 21t Met with Lauren
Third Sector questionnaire on | Howells November | Howells SCVS
PSB web page 17/10.
Consideration will Mapping of
include groups with existing groups,
protected networks and
characteristics events (e,g
(age, disability, SCVS
gender Training Katie Community Voice
reassignment, race, | day/development | Spendift, 12t project.)
religion or belief, of resources for | Rhian December
sex, sexual practioners to Miller, Jo Think about what
orientation, consult on the Portwood, Citizen Voice
marriage and civil plan with their Lauren means in relation
partnership, and groups and Howells to FGA (linked to
pregnancy and networks section below).
maternity (relevant
to voluntary sector
too)
(vi)Representatives
of persons resident | Questionnaire on | Rhian Launch
in the area and PSB web page ? | Millar / Jo | 21st Nov
those persons with | (hard copies ?) Portwood

an interest in the

Page 12




maintenance and
enhancement of
natural resources in
the board's area, as
the board considers
appropriate; any
other persons who
in the opinion of the
board, are
interested in the
improvement of the
area's economic,
social,
environmental and
cultural well-being).

Children and
Young People

Older People

Community
Councils

Training
day/development
of resources for
practioners to
consult on the
plan

Stakeholder
events/focus
groups X 2

The Big
Conversation

Children’s Rights
Day (activities ?)

AGM Newtork,
Dementia Forum

CCS &
SCVS
(see iv)

Katie
Spendift

Polly
Gordon

12th Dec

Jan 2018

Nov or
Jan

20t Nov

tbc

Nov 28th

(vii)Representatives
of persons carrying
on business in the
area

Discussion and
advice needed
from the
consultation and
engagement

group

Seek advice from
FIS about
Business Sector
(duty to consult
business re-
childcare
sufficiency
assessment

Swansea Bay
Business Club
(Bruce Roberts),
BID (Russell
Greenslade),
Regional
Business Forum
(Hywel Evans)
Major employers

(viii) Trade unions

E/mail / letter

Unison — Local

Page 13




representing and link to Authority
workers in the area | questionnaire Commitment to

sign up to
Unison’s Ethical
Care Charter.

14. It is recommended that members of the Partnership;

Agree the definitions and the use of such concepts — involvement,
consultation, engagement and participation — outlined in the paper, for the
purpose of the well-being plan,

Agree the standards as the PSB’s standards on consultation, for the
purposes of the plan,

Agree the action plan and its content as a working plan for involvement
activities, with delegated authority given to the planning group to approve the
finer details,

Agree to placing a link to the survey and the well-being plan on the home
page of their websites (as agreed by the Planning group 10/10/17), send
representatives to the training day on consultation (planned for Monday 11t
December), use their own forums and networks to consult on the plan
(materials and resources will be available at the training day and on the PSB
website), provide information about planned consultation events and the
results of any consultation to ensure that the PSB has an overview of all
involvement activity.

Page 14




Appendix 1

Swansea Local Service Board — Engagement Group Standards

The following outlines the standards to be adopted by the LSB Engagement group within its work. We have taken account of both the
National Principles for Pubic Engagement in Wales and the National Children and Young People’s Participation Standards for Wales. As a
group we endorse the National Principles for Public Engagement in which are:

1 Engagement is effectively designed to make a difference

6
2 Encourage and enable everyone affected to be involved, if they so 7
8

choose

Engagement is planned and delivered in a timely and appropriate way

3

4 Work with relevant partner organisations

5 The information provided will be jargon free, appropriate and
understandable

9

Make it easier for people to take part

Enable people to take part effectively

Engagement is given the right resources and support to be
effective

People are told the impact of their contribution:

10 Learn and share lessons to improve the process of

We are going to put these principles into practice by using these standards:

engagement

INFORMATION

This means:

* Information that is easy to understand for everyone

» Making sure you know what is going on and are up front
and clear.

GT abed

We will:

» Ensure everyone has enough information to get properly involved
* Let you know what difference you being involved will make
* Inform you about who is going to listen and make changes

Link to National Principles -1,5,6,7, 8

IT"S YOUR CHOICE

This means:

* You choose if you want to get involved or not

* You choose to work on things that are important to you
* You choose what you do and how you do it.

We will:
* Give you enough information and time to decide if this is
something you want to do.

Link to National Principles — 2, 6, 7

— T —

(~ NO DISCRIMINATION
This means:

things that matter to you.

\

* People are all different but you all have the same right to have a say about the

* We want everyone to feel welcome and be able to get involved if they want to be.

We will:

* challenge any discrimination

* get in touch with people in lots of different situations
* get you involved in things you want to do.

Link to National Principles - 2, 6, 7,

;J\ J/ —\ J/ ;/\ /




RESPECT
This means:

» Everyone has a chance to have a say, your opinions are
important and we will respect them.

We will:

» listen to your ideas, views and experiences

« take you seriously and treat you fairly

» work with you to do something about the things you tell us are important

[ Link to National Principles -1, 2,9

N

* It’s really important that you know what difference you have
made and how your ideas have been used.

YOU GET SOMETHING OUT OF IF We will:
This means: » work in safe, fun, and enjoyable ways
» We want you to enjoy and benefit from taking part » make the most of what you know
* Making sure that participating is a positive not a negative « value and respect what you have to offer.
experience. » meet in friendly places that are easy for all people to use
Link to National Principles -1,2,7, 8 ]
FEEDBACK We will:
This means:

* keep you up to date with what is happening

» give feedback as soon as possible and in ways that are easy to
understand for everyone.

1 9T abed \

Link to National Principles — 9, 10

N

IMPROVING HOW WE WORK We will:
This means: * make best use of past consultation and engagement results
» We want to learn and get better at the » work with other organisations where possible
way we work with you. * look at the way we work with you and how to improve it
+ ask you what has gone well and what needs to change
» make sure your views make a difference to the way we make plans and decisions
[ Link to National Principles - 1, 4, 8, 10 ]




Agenda Item 7

Human Rights City

This briefing note is in response to the Chair’s request for more information about
what a Human Rights City is, drawing on the experience of the City of York, and
what the potential might be for Swansea to adopt a similar approach in its work.

What is a Human Rights City
There are a number of organisations working to promote the idea of a Human Rights

City. The main one — the World Human Rights Forum http://www.whrf.org/
— identifies as its mission:

To unite the human rights activists and organizations around the globe to
protect and to promote human rights, values and global wellbeing necessary
for the creation of a better world order.

It further highlights its objectives as follows:

e To unite human rights activists, lovers of peace and NGOs worldwide
for the protection and promotion of human rights as enshrined in UDHR
and other international documents.

e To assist its members in accomplishing their tasks for the creation of a
better society and world.

e To empower its members around the world by acting as one strong and
unified voice in the protection of political, economic and cultural rights
at global, national and local levels.

e To serve its members by acting as their advocate and spokesman at
the international level on issues of human rights

e To give greater voice to human rights activists and NGOs beyond their
national borders.

e To recognize individuals and organizations by giving awards and
recognitions for their contribution to the protection and promotion of
human rights and values.

e To provide international conferences and symposia as for the
promotion of human rights and values.

Wikipedia identifies a Human Rights City as:

A Human Rights City is a municipality that refers explicitly to the Universal
Declaration of Human Rights and other international human rights standards
and/or law in their policies, statements, and programs. Analysts have
observed growing numbers of such cities since 2000... The Human Rights
City initiative emerged from the global human rights movement, and it reflects
efforts of activist groups to improve respect for human rights principles by
governments and other powerful actors who operate at the local/community
level. Because of their focus on local contexts, Human Rights Cities tend to
emphasize economic, social, and cultural rights as they affect the lives of

Page 17


http://www.whrf.org/
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Universal_Declaration_of_Human_Rights
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Universal_Declaration_of_Human_Rights
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Human_rights_movement
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Economic,_social_and_cultural_rights

residents of cities and other communities and their ability to enjoy civil and
political human rights.

Human rights advocates describe a Human Rights City as “One whose
residents and local authorities, through learning about the relevance of human
rights to their daily lives (guided by a steering committee), join in ongoing
learning, discussions, systematic analysis and critical thinking at the
community level, to pursue a creative exchange of ideas and the joint
planning of actions to realize their economic, social, political, civil and cultural
human rights.” Human rights cities were defined at the 2011 World Human
Rights Cities Forum as "both a local community and a socio-political process
in a local context where human rights play a key role as fundamental values
and guiding principles.” This framework has generated various practices in
different cities.

Wikipedia provides the background to the UDHR as follows:

All international human rights law is based in the Universal Declaration of
Human Rights, which was adopted in 1948. This document outlines the
inalienable and fundamental rights of humankind that are protected regardless
of gender, race, class, sexual orientation, religion, or any other social,
economic, or political factor. The articles in the UDHR are not legally binding,
but they are recognized as part of customary international law, and they
authorize the development of binding international treaties, which countries
may choose to sign and ratify. International human rights treaties and
monitoring processes, however, privileges national governments and limits
the role of local officials, whose cooperation in the implementation of
international law is critical. The day-to-day work of implementing human rights
standards often rests on the shoulders of local and regional authorities. They
too are bound by these agreements. Local and regional authorities are often
directly responsible for services related to health care, education, housing,
water supply, environment, policing and also, in many cases, taxation:

There are now more than 100 cities worldwide reporting as Human Rights Cities,
with the City of York being the only one in the UK at the time of writing, having
adopted their declaration in April 2017. For a full list of cities, see the appendix at the
end of this document.

What all of the cities’ approaches have at their heart is embedding human rights in a
way that makes sense for their city. It is different in each city and relates to how
partners in the city will prioritise areas of human rights, based on what is important to
their local populations. They are marked by a partnership that makes a formal
declaration about their approach and then a series of actions to implement them.
The intentions relate to both improving the situation of some disadvantaged citizens,
and also making the concepts of human rights more accessible and meaningful to
local people.

The Declaration for the City of York is as follows:

York Human Rights City Declaration

Page 18


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Civil_and_political_rights
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Civil_and_political_rights
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Socio-political
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/International_human_rights_law
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Universal_Declaration_of_Human_Rights
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Universal_Declaration_of_Human_Rights

York, in becoming a Human Rights City, embraces a vision of a vibrant,
diverse, fair and safe community built on the foundations of universal human
rights. This vision is shared by citizens and institutions in our city, including
the City Council, North Yorkshire Police, voluntary organisations and faith
communities.

We are building on York’s own particular history of democratic innovation,
philanthropy and an international outlook, all of which have shaped our
commitment to social justice.

This declaration marks an ambition. A significant point in a journey, not a final
destination. As the UK’s first Human Rights City we are committed to making
our vision real, putting fundamental rights at the heart of our policies, hopes
and dreams for the future.

Who is involved

In each city, there is a local partnership that drives the participation and development
of the Human Rights City approach. Membership varies from one city to the next, but
in general they appear to have the municipal (local) government, voluntary and
community organisations, educational institutions and faith-based organisations.

In York they have representatives from: the City of Sanctuary movement, York
Citizens Advice, Explore York, York CVS (Centre for Voluntary Service), North
Yorkshire Police, International Service, City of York Council, Friends of the Human
Rights Defenders and the Centre for Applied Human Rights at the University of York.

York Human Rights City is funded by the Joseph Rowntree Charitable Trust and the
Joseph Rowntree Foundation and they have received funding from the Economic
and Social Research Council in the past.

What they do

City of York has determined that they will have five priority areas and these are:

Education

Housing

Health

An adequate standard of living
Equality and non-discrimination.

abrwn =~

They have developed a partnership performance framework that provides a baseline
and regular reporting on indicators such as (the list is not exhaustive):

Hate crime

Educational attainment gap

Foodbank usage

Earnings gap between the 25" percentile and the median

Page 19



e Statutory homelessness per 1000 households
e Life expectancy by ward

The full Indicator Baseline Report is available here
https://www.york.ac.uk/media/cahr/documents/York%20Human%20Rights%20Indica
tor%20Report 2016.pdf

York also has a focus on Pledges — both from an organisational perspective as well
as individual. As at end of September, their website showed that 279 pledges have
been made. The purpose is to ensure awareness is raised about human rights, and
creates an atmosphere where rights are discussed on a regular basis, whether at
work, home or school.

York identify four key elements to their strategy:

Advocacy

e York: Human Rights City sits on the Fairness and Equalities Board and other
relevant bodies at the City of York Council (CYC). We advise on current issues,
and help provide trainings for staff at CYC and at other relevant local agencies.
Please note that we do not provide an individual casework service.

Networking

o We act as a network for organisations, individuals and businesses concerned
with human rights in York. If you have an event you would like to promote, help
or advice with an issue or something raised through our advocacy work, please
get in touch.

Events

e We hold a range of public events, from our annual Human Rights Culture and
Film Festival, annual Human Rights Indicator meeting to public talks and
workshops. Take a look at our events section for more details.

Research

e York: Human Rights City helps facilitate research on human rights issues in
York and beyond. Past projects include improving hate crime reporting
processes and assessing the North Yorkshire Police’s rights based approach.
We continue our work on human rights indicators for York.

Considerations for Swansea

In considering whether Swansea can or should become a Human Rights City, the
following considerations should be borne in mind.

Leadership and Passion — It is clear that adopting this kind of approach requires
clear leadership and an individual or individuals who will champion it with a great
deal of passion and commitment. It will not be meaningful nor impactful without this
and therefore unlikely to provide added value. The model can provide for a new
range of individuals to become involved in supporting a wider ideological agenda
with the right leadership.

University involvement and leadership — Clearly in York’s case it appears that York
University has provided strong leadership to gain agreement on this approach, keep

Page 20


https://www.york.ac.uk/media/cahr/documents/York%20Human%20Rights%20Indicator%20Report_2016.pdf
https://www.york.ac.uk/media/cahr/documents/York%20Human%20Rights%20Indicator%20Report_2016.pdf

it going and to provide the data and analysis that is fundamental to the performance
framework. Swansea University has the Observatory, and to date this has focused
on Children’s Rights, rather than the wider Human Rights agenda, and it is hard to
find on their website whether UWTSD have a similar focus. Within York University,
there is a specific school that has developed expertise in this area. Having said this,
there are more than 100 cities with Human Rights City status, and most of them do
not have similar higher education involvement.

Wellbeing of Future Generations Act (WFGA) — The approach outlined in the
weblinks and papers considered above show strong linkages to the approach as
outlined in the WFGA. There are many similarities to the five ways of working and
such an approach is likely to be well received by the Commissioner’s Office.

Public Service Board (PSB) and wellbeing assessment, performance framework —
Swansea PSB is in the process of defining its wellbeing objectives and actions.
Given the emphasis in the Human Rights City literature on partnership working, the
development of the local objectives, which have already been widely discussed with
partners and the public, could provide a platform for agreement of the objectives for
a Swansea Human Rights City approach. It would not make sense to have a
separate range of objectives, so a conversation with the PSB about appetite would
be appropriate.

Swansea’s existing agenda/s — The idea and vision of a Human Rights City fits with
Swansea’s agenda very well. Indeed, York’s website specifically highlights that it is
also a City of Sanctuary and is Dementia Friendly. In Swansea, we can add our
robust commitments to children’s rights, Child Friendly and Age Friendly as well as
these. The Human Rights City approach has the opportunity to put all of these under
a single banner. A question may arise as to whether or not this agenda is already
very crowded and a further initiative may not be received well by some. This is
worthy of consideration and discussion.

Added value — Whilst there is a strong fit with Swansea’s existing commitments, a
question for further research is the extent to which adopting a Human Rights City
approach will provide us with added value, and if so, what is that. We already have
strong partnerships in key areas so unless the approach brings in additional
resources, additional partners or a significant improvement in outcomes, it is unlikely
to receive the strong support it would need to progress.

Resourcing — As highlighted in the text above, York receives funding from the
Joseph Rowntree Foundation and has previously had funding from other sources. It
may be possible for Swansea to receive similar levels of external support, but
dedicated resources will be needed to ensure that an initiative of this nature has the
traction it needs.

Recommendations

Initial contact has been made with the York Human Rights City and a proposal that
they present to a future meeting of the Swansea Public Service Board. PSB

Page 21



members are requested to provide feedback on this approach and identify any
particular questions that they would like to see covered in those conversations.

Chris Sivers
Director of People
10 November 2017

Page 22



Appendix
Further information

York Human Rights City
http://lwww.yorkhumanrights.org/

Centre for Applied Human Rights, York University

Centre for Applied Human Rights (CAHR)

University of York

The Centre for Applied Human Rights (CAHR) is an interdisciplinary research and
teaching centre. It is a friendly community of scholars and visiting practitioners who
have a shared focus on the real world challenges of putting human rights into
practice and protecting human rights defenders at risk. A focus on human rights
defending and defenders shapes all the Centre’s work.

www.york.ac.uk/cahr

https://rightsinfo.org/york-human-rights-city-and-yours-could-be-next/

The following cities have been formally designated as Human Rights Cities (list not
yet updated to include York):

Africa
« Walewale, Ghana
o Korogocho, Kenya
e Thies, Senegal

e Timbuktu, Mali

Musha, Rwanda
Mogale, South Africa

Asia

Gwangju, South Korea (2003)
Bucuy Municipality, Philippines
Nagpur, India

Kaohsiung, Taiwan

Wonosobo District, Indonesia
Bojonegoro District, Indonesia
Bandung, Indonesia (2015)

Europe
e Graz, Austria (2001)
o Bihac, Bosnia
e Vienna, Austria (2014)
o Utrecht, Netherlands (2015)

North America
« Edmonton, AB, Canada (2003)

Page 23


http://www.yorkhumanrights.org/
http://www.york.ac.uk/cahr/defenders/
http://www.york.ac.uk/cahr/
https://rightsinfo.org/york-human-rights-city-and-yours-could-be-next/
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Walewale
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Korogocho
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Thi%C3%A8s
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Timbuktu
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Musha,_Rwanda
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Mogale_City_Local_Municipality
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Gwangju
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Nagpur
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Kaohsiung
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Wonosobo
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Bojonegoro
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Bandung
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Graz
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Biha%C4%87
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Vienna
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Utrecht
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Edmonton

e Winnipeg, MB, Canada (2003) The Canadian Museum for Human Rights
opened in this city on September 19, 2014
Washington D.C., United States (2008)
Carrboro, NC, United States (2009)
Chapel Hill, NC, United States (2009)
Richmond, CA, United States (2009)
Eugene, OR, United States (2011)
Boston, MA, United States (2011)
Pittsburgh, PA, United States (2011)
Seattle, WA, United States (2012)
Jackson, MS, United States (2014)

Edina, MN, United States (2016)
Mountain View, CA, United States (2016)

South America
e Rosario, Argentina (1997)
e Santa Cruz, Bolivia
o Porto Alegre, Brazil
e« Temuco, Chile

Page 24


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Winnipeg
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Canadian_Museum_for_Human_Rights
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Washington,_D.C.
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Carrboro,_North_Carolina
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Chapel_Hill,_North_Carolina
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Richmond,_CA
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Eugene,_Oregon
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Boston
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Pittsburgh
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Seattle
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Jackson,_Mississippi
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Edina,_Minnesota
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Mountain_View,_California
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Rosario,_Santa_Fe
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Santa_Cruz_de_la_Sierra
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Porto_Alegre
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Temuco

Agenda Iltem 8

Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

By e-mail
31% October 2017
Advice from the Future Generations Commissioner for Wales to Swansea PSB

Dear Swansea Public Services Board and supporting officers,

Thank you for seeking my advice on how you might take steps to meet your draft well-being objectives. My team
have found regular contact with your supporting officers and meeting some of you last week very helpful in giving
them an understanding of how you work together as a PSB; the method you have taken to well-being planning
and your intentions to deliver the objectives and take steps in a different way. As they will have discussed with
you, | was keen that my advice would be useful to you and the context within which you work, so | hope you have
also found these regular touch-points helpful and that they have given you some guidance along the way.

Thank you for sharing a copy of your draft well-being plan with the team. | understand that you have held
workshops and engaged with citizens around the future of Swansea to determine your draft objectives, which
currently are:

1. Objective 1: Live well age well — to make Swansea a great place to live and age well.

2. Objective 2: Early years — to ensure the best start for all children.

3. Objective 3: Working with nature — to improve health, enhance biodiversity and reduce our carbon
footprint.

4. Objective 4: Strong communities — to empower communities promoting pride and belonging.

My advice is in two parts — firstly, to help you consider how you might take steps to meet your objectives
effectively. Secondly, based on your themes and draft objectives it provides prompts, resources and contacts to
help you demonstrate through your well-being plan that you have used the five ways of working and seven well-
being goals to shape your steps. The purpose of this advice is not to give you my opinion on your well-being
objectives. These are determined and owned by you, as a collective PSB.

| would encourage you to read this in conjunction with my response to your well-being assessment. | was keen
that it was a 'feed-forward’, rather than 'feedback’, helping you to consider how to approach continuous
assessment and well-being planning. As you know, | have recently published 'Well-being in Wales: Planning today
for a better tomorrow', which highlights key findings and recommendations for all PSBs and public bodies on the
key areas of change needed to make better decisions for future generations. Both of these resources are also
intended as advice to you.

Adopting different ways of working to take steps to meet your draft objectives:

Setting objectives and steps is not business as usual. In the past, we have drawn out themes and priorities and
written plans that show what we are doing anyway. Achieving the ambitions of this Act is about a different way of
working. The sustainable development principles is the 'what' AND the 'how"' i.e. what are you doing to contribute
to our shared vision of the seven national well-being goals? The goals acknowledge that sustainable development
connects the environment in which we live, the economy in which we work, the society in which we enjoy and the
cultures in which we share, to people and their quality of life, so what are you going to do differently together?
And, how you are applying the sustainable development principle to shape your actions for Bridgend?

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT
cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@futuregenerations.wales

cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futuregeneratifl@gal



Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

| must emphasise that your leadership is required to adopt this new way of working. | made recommendations in
'Well-being in Wales: Planning today for a better tomorrow' (p53-54) around the governance of partnerships,
which | suggest you consider in the context of Swansea. The recommendations include consideration of how PSBs
are managed and led. The way your PSB is currently structured around a Core Group and Partnership Group is
unique to Swansea. This may be the best way of working for you, but my team have heard conflicting information
on how this structure impacts on progress and decision-making. | question how dynamic you can be in making
decisions and taking action in the governance structures you currently operate, so | would advise you to review
their effectiveness for delivering the well-being plan.

Other recommendations of the report included consideration of how PSBs are chaired, who sits on the Board and
how genuine collaboration can be enabled. | am keen that PSBs are inclusive and allow transparency of action and
decision-making. Again, my team have received conflicting information on whether having a Core Group and a
large Partnership Group best achieves this. It is impossible to make decisions responsibly if there is a lack of clarity
on who does what and where and, given that | have heard confusion around this, | would suggest there is a risk in
continuing the way you are. | advise you engage with all partners swiftly about their views on the structures and
the sustainability of these arrangements. Delivering your draft well-being plan should be a driver for doing things
differently.

| stated in the report that it is important we move away from seeing PSBs as local authority led. It should be a new
way of working, not driven by any one organisation’s culture or processes. The members of the Board, how it is
structured, how and where meetings are held, and how the PSB is supported can all shift mindsets and allow for
healthier challenge to 'business as usual'. Doing this requires understanding of each other’s professions and
motivations as organisations. | am pleased to hear that you have started to do ‘walk in my shoes’ meetings across
the Core Group partners, but consider the value other organisations can bring to these discussions too.

How you take messages from the PSB back to your own organisations is also important in communicating why the
work of the PSB matters to your own senior management teams and using the well-being plan to challenge
current practices within your own departments. Alongside this, you will also need to demonstrate how each of
your organisations are taking all reasonable steps in the exercising of their functions to meet the PSB’s objectives.
| want to see that the work of the PSB is not seen as something separate to the priorities of all member’s bodies.
The Act sets out seven areas for change: corporate planning, financial planning, workforce planning,
procurement, assets, performance management and risk. Often, officers do not understand the work of the PSB
in these areas of work, yet these are the core organisational activities where applying the five ways of working
would ensure the sustainable development principle frames how you work.

It follows that co-ordinating this work needs to be recognized by all of you as members of the PSB. | understand
that organisational leads, objective leads and project leads have been assigned to this work. | am interested in
how different PSBs are supported and it appears that when support is multi-agency, resourced and committed to
by different partners, collaboration and integration across departments and structures becomes easier. | would
encourage you to consider how effective organisational leads and objective leads have been to date —a
conversation on how this process has gone is something | am encouraging every PSB to reflect on. For instance,
some PSBs are already adopting closer working arrangements, a multi-agency virtual team with a senior leader or
more formal secondments and co-location. There are several resources that may be of use in considering this,
such as Designing Multi-Agency Partnerships; Leading Culture Change and Stepping up: a framework for public

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT
cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@futuregenerations.wales
cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futuregenerationi?ﬁ@ﬁ 26


https://futuregenerations.wales/documents/well-wales-planning-today-better-tomorrow/
http://www.mspguide.org/sites/default/files/case/msp_guide-2016-digital.pdf
https://www.cipd.co.uk/Images/leading-culture-change-employee-engagement-and-public-service-transformation_2012_tcm18-14116.pdf
https://www.forumforthefuture.org/sites/default/files/project/downloads/steppinguppub-sector-leadership.pdf

Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

sector leadership on sustainability. This will require you, people in positions of leadership, to play your part and
be brave in driving the changes needed.

As such, to adapt your ways of working often requires a fundamentally different approach. My team have been
developing a 'Future Generations Framework' in partnership with the New Economics Foundation, to assist
thinking. The purpose of this framework (originally intended for projects concerning infrastructure) is to help
public bodies use the Well-being of Future Generations Act as a framework for thinking when developing
projects; it can also be used to review progress as the project develops. We are working on ensuring the
framework is applicable to a wider range of projects including policy/programme development and it will be
available shortly. We would be interested to hear any feedback on its usefulness to your work.

Academi Wales' Sustainable Futures Architecture articulates succinctly how leadership behaviours need to change
in line with the principles. You need to give yourselves the time and space as a PSB to question whether current
approaches to public service delivery are fit for the future and explore key pressures and tensions in delivery for
each of your objectives. Practically, | am advising that PSBs take a dedicated meeting or create sessions for each
of your draft objectives to be discussed in an honest forum. In general, for each of your draft objectives, | would
like to understand what the steps mean for Swansea, and how this is a different way of working to what you
would have done before.

I would advise that you will need to demonstrate how your PSB has considered the following in relation to each
of your objectives:

e Long-term: | understand that your workshops considered future scenarios around each of your initial
priorities for Swansea. Seeing what you understand about the long-term trends, opportunities, risks and
likely scenarios for the issue would be welcomed. Have you explored their impact on your steps? Are
there current gaps in your data or understanding? What fore-sighting or future trends information do you
need to understand this issue better? What capacity, confidence and expertise do you need to fill gaps in
knowledge?

Your draft well-being plan currently only looks 'seven plus' years into the future. My statutory role is to
act as the guardian of future generations to meet their needs and to encourage public bodies to take
greater account of the long-term impact of the things they do. | am advising public bodies to think beyond
the next five, ten or fifteen years and think about future generations, in twenty-five, thirty, to thirty-five
years’ time.

To inform the action you take, you will need to adequately map and consider the future trends for each of
your objectives. My office is working with others to build capacity in this area and, as your support team
are aware, Welsh Government have been adding to the 'Future Trends' report resources, which you
should make most use of by accessing through Objective Connect or by contacting David Thomas. The
Oxford Martin 'Now for the long-term' report shows global and national future trends that we all need to
react to in carrying out sustainable development.

e Prevention: In considering this issue, do you have an understanding of what you are trying to prevent?
What are the root causes of the issue and when and where would be the best point to intervene? Are you
clear on whether it is primary prevention i.e. seeking to prevent something before it has even occurred;

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT
cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@futuregenerations.wales

cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futuregeneratis)ragﬂlgg


https://www.forumforthefuture.org/sites/default/files/project/downloads/steppinguppub-sector-leadership.pdf
https://academiwales.gov.wales/Repository/resource/f28c7324-855f-4622-aa53-06ae06cb61bb/en
http://www.oxfordmartin.ox.ac.uk/downloads/commission/Oxford_Martin_Now_for_the_Long_Term.pdf
http://www.oxfordmartin.ox.ac.uk/downloads/commission/Oxford_Martin_Now_for_the_Long_Term.pdf

Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

secondary prevention i.e. preventing something from getting worse; or tertiary prevention i.e. softening
the impact of something that has ongoing effects; that is needed? This is the difference between
encouraging someone to wear a bicycle helmet (primary prevention of head-injury); putting someone in
the recovery position if they have fallen from their bike (secondary prevention of the injury worsening)
and counselling after the accident (tertiary prevention to help ongoing injuries from worsening).

Many PSBs haven't used their assessments to fully understand both the current situation and the scale
and nature of the response required. | appreciate you might not know the full picture yet, but | want to
see all PSBs exploring how they break cycles and dig deeper into data to see the implicit messages in the
data to better understand the causes and effects of key issues and trends to inform your steps.

e Collaboration: | understand you are collaborating more across Local Authority boundaries and have
regional support. As | have already recommended, now is a timely opportunity to review the invited
membership of the PSB and consider who are the 'unusual’ suspects that you may need to work with to
take steps to meet your objectives? It is important that the people who sit around the PSB table can
bring the best range of insights, constructive challenge, data and solutions to the PSB. How does this play
out between the Core Group and the Partnership Group? Have you got the right people around the table,
at the right level to make decisions around an issue? Are people clear of their roles? Who else might you
need to be collaborating with to better understand this?

In delivering the steps, how might your organisations collaborate? You will need to demonstrate how
your PSB is considering the steps that need to be taken together and across organisational boundaries in
order to effectively meet your objectives. This could include co-locating staff, breaking down traditional
structures, arranging job-swaps and secondments and, importantly, pooling resources. | will want to see
how you have considered these benefits and how the steps you will take move you towards achieving this
collaboration.

e Integration: For each objective, how are you going to move away from just doing something that meets
the objective, and instead, demonstrate that you are taking steps which maximise your contribution to
each of the goals? | am telling all PSBs to deliberately and explicitly consider the interconnections
between your objectives to help inform your decisions about the most effective steps. Instead of looking
at this issue in a traditional and general sense, have you looked at the definition for each of the goals to
widen your understanding of well-being for this issue and the opportunities which might exist for meeting
these goals through each of your objectives? How well do you understand the contribution your
organisation makes at the moment to this objective? And do you understand how different is the
contribution you will need to make going forward for this objective?

How can you plot what's going on elsewhere in your respective organisations, the strategies and plans at
a regional or a national level, to connect and lead with others on achieving this objective? | understand
you have acknowledged the relationship between your Board and that of the regional Social Services and
Well-being Board. Integration means ensuring that the other partnerships understand and contribute to
each other's work. The PSB should not be seen as a separate entity. Have you yet acknowledged the
barriers or tensions that have arisen and what steps can you (or others) take to remove them? Who else
is needed around the PSB table to help you interconnect decision-making and improve well-being for this

issue?
Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT
cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@futuregenerations.wales
cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futuregenerationi?ﬁ@ﬁ 28



Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

e Involvement: My response to your well-being assessment suggested that you build on the engagement
work to date as a PSB. | want to see a demonstrated focus now from all PSBs of going beyond the usual
consultation and ad-hoc engagement. PSBs will need to demonstrate how they are seeking to understand
the lived experiences of people in the area and how this is shaping your actions. How are you now
actively seeking better ways of involving people in decision-making? How can you collaborate with
members of the community in meeting these steps? As with the Social Care Wales Board, what options
are there for involving people with lived experience on Boards and partnership groups?

These questions should be considered by all PSBs, but | appreciate every PSB has taken a different approach to
drafting their well-being objectives and will be going about delivering their well-being plan in the context that is
right for them. The second section of my advice seeks to help you demonstrate, through your well-being plan,
that you have used the five ways of working and seven well-being goals to shape your steps.

Advice on how you might take steps to meet your draft objectives:

From the regular conversations you have had with my team, | know your supporting officers have worked hard
over the summer to draw on your assessment findings, synthesize key messages and draft logic models relating to
each of your objectives. This has hopefully given you an idea of the collective action you need to take to meet
your objectives. | suggest you now consider how you take action that maximises your contribution to all of the
well-being goals. Ask yourselves —what more could we do? | advise you to look at the legal definitions of the
seven well-being goals and look for ways that maximise your contribution to all seven, for each objective. By
exploring connections to the goals, you will not only gain a more a holistic picture of the issue you are trying to
resolve but you also can maximise the range of resources and opportunities you can draw on to help you find
solutions.

e Objective 1: Live well age well — to make Swansea a great place to live and age well.

Well-being is not just about our health, but our social lives, our feelings of belonging, our built and natural
surroundings, our income and community life — all of which are wider determinants of health. In taking steps to
meet this objective, | would advise you to look at the assets of Swansea — in the state of the natural environment,
the community spirit and the heritage of the area. People often don’t improve their health because they are told
to do so by public services, but because they realise themselves the value of their own lives and the importance of
staying healthy for longer. Only by continuously involving people to understand what matters to them can you
begin to affect behaviour change. You have a role in considering what opportunities people might need to
improve their own health, the services people need to recover well from ill-health and in creating the right built
environments to maximise people's health and well-being.

The logic model for this objective sensibly suggests that this is about a whole life course approach, this draft
objective is linked to your others of: having a good start in life, a resilient natural environments and community
cohesion. | would advise you are more explicit in how you can make these connections and in critically assessing
how integrated your services are, exploring the tensions between policies and delivery. The five ways of working
are intended to provide you with a frame to consider such issues together. In terms of an ageing population and
health inequalities, ask yourselves if current provision is appropriate to manage this growing issue? In what areas
might provision need more collective action? Currently, social services and health are barely dealing with the

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT
cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@futuregenerations.wales

cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futuregeneratifl@gal



Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

current demand and, unfortunately, many are looking at traditional models of resourcing 'crisis' intervention to
deal with this. This is where the five ways of working should be challenging your thinking, how can you approach
this issue creatively? The Social Services and Well-being Act provides a legislative opportunity here, so | would like
to see a demonstrated influence by the PSB to the regional Social Services and Well-being Partnership Board to
ensure they are taking steps to meet your objectives.

| am encouraged that you are seeking to understand what impact your own organisations can have on this priority
through, for example, encouraging the workforce to maintain their well-being. | think PSBs are eager to move
from talking to doing, so | would advise you look at the quick-wins you can achieve here and make some swift
changes. The seven areas of change in the Act are a starting point for the impact you can have. They are
corporate planning, financial planning, workforce planning, procurement, assets, performance management and
risk, which are the core organisational activities where applying the five ways of working would ensure the
sustainable development principle frames how you work. As public services, you employ a significant chunk of the
population and many of your workers will have families living in the area also. | would also advise you to
appreciate the influence you can have over other organisations too.

There are many different ways of taking steps to improve employee well-being and examples across the world of
innovative approaches. This not only makes financial sense (the conservative cost of work-related ill health in
Wales is £500m per year) but improves well-being for the residents of Swansea. The Sunday Times compile an
annual list of the 100 best companies to work for; with the ability to filter by which ones are top for ‘well-being’,
and countries such as Sweden have been ahead of Britain in how they ensure their staff are well and working to
their best abilities. Closer to home, the collaboration between Welsh Government, Public Health Wales and
Cardiff University, ‘Healthy Working Wales’, is full of resources and guides to helping you collaborate in creating a
well workforce. Public Health Wales have established a national 'Health and Sustainability Hub' to co-ordinate
their own work around the Act and, through your PSB representative, you might find it useful to link with the
national team for further evidence and knowledge. Are there opportunities to start schemes that bring
employees together and contribute to the well-being goals? For example, some organisations have introduced
tree planting and bee-keeping, which contributes to a more globally responsible Wales, a resilient Wales and a
healthier Wales. Change often 'sticks' when people are involved in wider social and cultural activities together; for
example, the Nudjed 'Behaviour Change is a Team Sport' report found getting people together increased exercise
patterns. Their work has included successfully working with young mums in the South Wales Valleys to get them
involved in more physical activity.

Continuing to learn through life has been proven to have benefits for people's mental and physical well-being, as
well as social well-being. There is a real opportunity here for you to consider how you maximise your contribution
to the well-being goals. How can you encourage activities that promote art, culture, learning the Welsh language,
caring for natural habitats, creating community food growing initiatives, for instance, that help improve people's
well-being? Looking to the long term, how can these activities prevent some of the preventable ill-health people
are suffering that compromises their independence? Collaborating with the national public bodies subject to the
Act, such as the Arts Council, Sport Wales and Museum of Wales, could be of help here; please let my team know
if you would like to connect with relevant individuals in these organisations. In terms of the older population,
there are many good examples of projects that seek to bring people together to learn new skills, socialise and
build their resilience in later life, like Men's Sheds Cymru, happening across Wales that the PSB could encourage

and support.

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT
cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@futuregenerations.wales
cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futuregenerationi?ﬁ@ﬁ 30


http://appointments.thesundaytimes.co.uk/article/best100companies/
http://appointments.thesundaytimes.co.uk/article/best100companies/
http://www.hrmagazine.co.uk/article-details/five-wellbeing-lessons-britain-can-learn-from-sweden
http://www.healthyworkingwales.wales.nhs.uk/home
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/888/page/89661
http://get.nudjed.com/behavioural-change-white-paper/
http://www.mensshedscymru.co.uk/

Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

The work of the Older People's Commissioner is particularly helpful in exploring the steps you could take to meet
this objective and includes her recent guidance to PSBs, advising public services recognise how much of an asset
the older population are in terms of caring, volunteering and contributing to the economy. Research by Ageing
Well Wales has shown this and suggests that loneliness in people is both about how connected people are to their
communities physically and about feeling purposeful in society. This report by the Young Foundation provides
inspiration on 'Innovating better ways of living late in life', challenging the traditional siloes we are working in.
Creating flexible and age friendly communities and environments can prevent people from needing social care,
from becoming isolated, from suffering ill-health or having an accident at home.

You have a collective responsibility around planning, housing, infrastructure and the environment. Wales has an
opportunity to develop in a way that better meets demographic change, but we all need to be brave in
challenging the way things are currently done. Programmes like the World Health Organisation’s Age Friendly
Cities initiative have encouraged and recognised those cities that have made themselves more age-friendly
adapting buildings, transport and planning rules, which enable older people to stay healthy and connected to
things that matter to them for longer. Laguna woods, the first city exclusively for older people in the US, and the
Marjala suburbs in Finland are examples of design suited to multiple abilities. As well as having responsibilities
around planning and designing infrastructure, you could encourage co-housing, supported housing and
homeshares. There are innovative global examples of these schemes, such as students are living rent free in
nursing homes in exchange for socialising and providing basic care to the older residents; Australia and New
Zealand have introduced 'HomeShare' schemes, and, as part of their national government's demography strategy,
Germany has introduced intergenerational housing for older people and young families in need. In Singapore,
young people are given a $50,000 grant if they move within 1km of their aged grandparents. These are all
innovations that are proving to have an impact.

In our sharing economy, could there be other online technical solutions to preventing social isolation, around car-
pooling or community transport connected to social media? The 'Hypervillage' concept developed by FutureScape
imagines villages connected by their assets, encouraging people in rural communities to capitalise on technology.
How have you thought about the long-term possibilities of employing technological solutions for this issue? How
can older people become more connected to social opportunities and volunteering? Are volunteers currently
involved in the work of the PSB to help you consider how they can help you to meet your objectives? Solva
Community Council in Pembrokeshire are an interesting example of how volunteers and older residents have
benefited from a scheme to reduce isolation and improve well-being. Some research suggests that just 5% of
those over 65 years old have any form of structured contact with younger people._Intergenerational projects are
shown to have benefits for young and old, with both older and younger people taking on the role of mentor. How
can you collaborate to create more opportunities for people to come together? How can increased involvement
improve the health of older people in your area?

You have identified how economic well-being impacts on health and equality. The city deal clearly provides an
exciting opportunity for the region and | am encouraged by the engagement of those involved with the
sustainable development principle and the Act. You should seek to integrate this work with the work of the PSB
as you play a central role in steering these opportunities as a place benefitting from the investment. | would
advise that, as people in positions of leadership, you need to influence the current negotiations with the
economic, environmental, social and cultural well-being of people across the region in mind. This is a positive
economic opportunity but how can we balance our responsibilities to develop a city region that is sustainable and

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT
cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@futuregenerations.wales

cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futuregeneratifl@gal


http://www.olderpeoplewales.com/en/publications.aspx
http://www.ageingwellinwales.com/en/themes/loneliness-and-isolation
http://www.ageingwellinwales.com/en/themes/loneliness-and-isolation
https://youngfoundation.org/wp-content/uploads/2012/10/Innovating-better-ways-of-living-in-later-life-context-examples-and-opportunities-May-2010.pdf
http://www.who.int/ageing/age-friendly-world/en/
http://www.who.int/ageing/age-friendly-world/en/
http://www.ocregister.com/2014/05/02/laguna-woods-isnt-what-you-think-younger-livelier-involved/
http://www.independent.co.uk/life-style/health-and-families/why-some-dutch-university-students-are-living-in-nursing-homes-demential-a7451486.html
http://homeshare.org/about/
https://www.theguardian.com/society/2014/oct/23/german-centres-bring-older-people-children-together
http://www.lookupproject.org/hypervillage-concept
https://www.theguardian.com/sustainable-business/technology-rural-areas-thriving-sustainable
http://solvacare.co.uk/
http://solvacare.co.uk/
http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/health/8637156/Full-circle-the-social-network-for-older-people.html
http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/health/8637156/Full-circle-the-social-network-for-older-people.html
http://www.telegraph.co.uk/lifestyle/wellbeing/11812307/Mixing-young-and-old-people-can-extend-lives.html
http://www.telegraph.co.uk/lifestyle/wellbeing/11812307/Mixing-young-and-old-people-can-extend-lives.html

Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

puts people at the centre. My letter to those involved in the Cardiff Capital Region provides further advice and |
also recently commented in response to Dr Mark Lang and Professor Terry Marsden's recent report "Re-thinking
Growth: Toward the Well-being Economy."

| am encouraging all PSBs to share ideas and collaborate with one another where they have set similar objectives.
Other PSBs looking at this include Neath Port Talbot; Cardiff; Conwy / Denbighshire; Monmouthshire and Powys.

e Objective 2: Early years — to ensure the best start for all children.

Most PSBs have drafted objectives similar to this, recognising the importance of investing in future generations. |
have asked each PSB setting similar objectives: what is going to change at all levels to make this happen? How will
services aimed at prospective parents and families change locally? What local evidence will you use to understand
the successful service models and the preventative interventions that work? How might focusing on preventing
adverse childhood experiences (ACEs) as a PSB play out in reality for your organisations and services? Who might
you need to involve to understand this better? Who needs to be around the table to make it happen?

Currently, services are often not set up in a way that would deliver this objective. We operate in siloes, preferring
to chase our priorities than start with the person. We end up dealing with people in neat 'service-user' categories,
such as 'domestic abuse victim', 'anti-social behaviour perpetrator’, 'substance misuser', ‘problem tenant', which
often create barriers for people to have equality of opportunity or outcome. This approach means we fail to join
up the dots, to integrate and to spot signs of a worsening situation. | have suggested that ensuring children have
the best start is not just a 'health’ or 'early years' issue. As your well-being assessment identifies, domestic abuse,
mental ill health and substance misuse continue to be major challenges for services in Swansea. We know these
impact on children with cycles continuing to the next generation, as illustrated by Public Health Wales' work on
Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs).

Tackling ACEs must therefore be seen as a responsibility of the whole system, not just in terms of awareness but
in terms of how the system operates. Your logic model begins to explain this, with one of your primary drivers
being ‘support services are high quality and well integrated’. | would advise that your steps to meet this objective
follow suit. Information sharing and evidence based work is hugely important; Nesta and the Alliance for Useful
Evidence have published 'Using Research Evidence' as a guide to public bodies to encourage a confidence in
taking new approaches. short, sharp interventions by empowered individuals.

But although making people, and those who work with them, aware of the signs and able to adopt a trauma
informed approach is important, | want to see how you intend to address services as a whole. It is important that
you consider how well the services which currently respond to families where ACEs are a factor are responding
and whether they are fit for purpose in terms of preventing on ongoing adverse experiences for children and
families. Applying the five ways of working to this issue would mean that services for families in criminal justice,
housing, social services, early years, substance misuse, domestic abuse and others would be integrated and
effective in being preventative of a worsening situation as well as informed by peoples lived experiences and an
understanding of what works for them and what doesn’t.

Alyson Francis, Director of the ACE Support Hub, has recently worked with my office to write to you, outlining
that ACEs are not another thing to do, but an opportunity to reconsider how we deliver services together that
make sense for the families receiving them. The ACE Support Hub could also act as a central place for PSBs to

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT
cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@futuregenerations.wales
cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futuregeneration%ﬁ@ﬁ 32


https://futuregenerations.wales/news/city-deal-can-be-better-deal-for-future-generations/
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-41109833
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-41109833
http://www.cardiff.ac.uk/news/view/923006-rethinking-growth
http://www.cardiff.ac.uk/news/view/923006-rethinking-growth
http://www.alliance4usefulevidence.org/assets/Using-Research-Evidence-for-Success-A-Practice-Guide-new-brand-Welsh_English-FINAL-1.pdf
http://www.alliance4usefulevidence.org/assets/Using-Research-Evidence-for-Success-A-Practice-Guide-new-brand-Welsh_English-FINAL-1.pdf

Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

share practice, as almost all of the PSBs in Wales have discussed early years, children and ACEs in their draft
objectives and steps. Alyson Francis and | are also on the panel of the Good Practice Exchange Wales webinar on
understanding ACEs on the 7th November, which may be helpful to you in considering your steps for this

objective.

The costs of the worst start in life are enormous, both to the individual's life and to public services. Late
intervention services for young people are estimated to cost England and Wales £17bn per year (£6bn on child
protection and safeguarding, £5.2bn on crime and anti-social behaviour, £3.7bn on youth economic inactivity,
£680m on school absence and exclusion, £610m on child injuries and mental health problems, and £450m on
youth substance misuse). | want to see that your organisations recognise it is part of all of their responsibilities to
collaborate in preventing poor outcomes. The Public Health Wales' First 1000 days work shows how investing in a
child's life from the very beginning can break cycles and have benefits to their long term well-being. How might
local services have to change if you redirect investment?

Disadvantage in early life can have long-lasting effects on children and young people’s well-being and can severely
impact their prospects of securing a prosperous, healthy, safe and socially active future. Childhood is a key
window of opportunity and | have been working with the Children's Commissioner to advise that public bodies
and PSBs should give a greater focus to children’s rights and well-being in their ongoing assessment work and
well-being planning. You have already recognized this in your draft steps and | would encourage you to explore
developing a children’s rights policy focus, enabling children to learn about their rights and empowering them to
play an active role in their communities. To support our work, a toolkit is being tested and will be available before
the end of the year. The Children’s Commissioner's office would be happy to advise on engaging with children and
young people and taking a child-rights approach to securing well-being for future generations. Involving children
and young people in understanding how you approach this should be central to your work.

One of the purposes of having a PSB is to challenge existing service boundaries. Children live within families, that
live within communities and they access many services — families do not recognise the same differences between
organisations as we do. Involving people and understanding is central to understanding and challenging the whole
system; only by understanding the lived experiences of people can we design services that are fit for current and
future generations. The case studies contained in this report by Locality demonstrate the financial and social costs
of not taking this holistic and preventative approach to people's lives. Therefore, explore the opportunities that
exist in challenging current service delivery with this objective as a focus and the seven national well-being goals
as a guide.

Many things impact on the life chances of children and young people and it is important for the PSB to
understand where they can have most impact. For example, a 2013 review carried out by the London School of
Economics for the Joseph Rowntree Foundation found that children in lower-income families have worse
cognitive, social-behavioural and health outcomes. Crucially, this study demonstrated that it was in part because
they are poorer, not just because low income is correlated with other household and parental characteristics. The
New Economics Foundation 'Backing the Future' report highlights how we have a role in addressing both material
well-being and external circumstances — such as housing, poverty, and schooling — as well as psychosocial well-
being and inner resources, which links to the natural environment we grow up in, connected communities, high
quality jobs and health. Your consideration has to be wider than what early years, education or health services
can do. Linked to your draft objective on reducing social and economic inequalities, how can the PSB collaborate
with others to improve the economic well-being of families across the region? Your well-being assessment

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT
cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@futuregenerations.wales

cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futuregeneratifl@gal


https://www.wao.gov.uk/events/how-understanding-adverse-childhood-experiences-aces-can-help-integrated-service-delivery
https://www.wao.gov.uk/events/how-understanding-adverse-childhood-experiences-aces-can-help-integrated-service-delivery
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiGutaZ697WAhUMcBoKHcetBjkQFggpMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.eif.org.uk%2Fpublication%2Fthe-cost-of-late-intervention-eif-analysis-2016%2F&usg=AOvVaw1Vy5PH-qEEPqkveDOVuVY0
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiGutaZ697WAhUMcBoKHcetBjkQFggpMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.eif.org.uk%2Fpublication%2Fthe-cost-of-late-intervention-eif-analysis-2016%2F&usg=AOvVaw1Vy5PH-qEEPqkveDOVuVY0
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/888/page/88523
https://www.childcomwales.org.uk/
http://locality.org.uk/resources/saving-money-local-default-replace-diseconomies-scale/
http://www.lse.ac.uk/News/Latest-news-from-LSE/2017/07-July-2017/Income-directly-affects-childrens-outcomes
http://www.lse.ac.uk/News/Latest-news-from-LSE/2017/07-July-2017/Income-directly-affects-childrens-outcomes
http://neweconomics.org/2009/09/backing-the-future/

Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

highlights inequality and deprivation in parts of the county. How can these communities, in particular, be focused
on? If we know that by the time children in some areas reach reception class in school, the circumstances of
where they live already affects well-being, then we need to be intervening at a much earlier stage in responding
to these trends.

As well as income, we know that maternal and familial health has a big impact on a child's life, linking to your
other objectives. Between 10% and 20% of women develop mental health problems during pregnancy of within a
year of giving birth. These illnesses are one of the leading causes of death for mothers during pregnancy and the
year after birth. Despite this, women in around half of the UK have no access to specialist perinatal mental health
services and in other geographical areas, services are inadequate. Considering the impact of services like this on
young families is important if you are to take a cross-sector approach. The 'Mums and Babies in Mind' project in
England has given a focus to local leaders to create a pathway across sectors that provide expectant and new
mothers with the right support at the right time. There are many services already in Swansea aimed at reducing
smoking, obesity and inactivity and | have already advised you that applying the lens of the Act to these issues
would assist in evaluating the effectiveness of services — celebrating success and sharing learning, but also
realising where improvement might be needed too.

As | have said, most PSBs have identified draft objectives connected to early years, giving children a good start in
life and preventing ACEs including Cwm Taf, Caerphilly, Anglesey and Gwynedd, Blaenau Gwent, Newport and
Conwy / Denbighshire.

e Objective 3: Working with nature — to improve health, enhance biodiversity and reduce our carbon
footprint.

Swansea has a beautiful natural environment and, as you have recognised in your well-being assessment, the
green spaces, beaches, rivers and wildlife enhance people’s mental and physical well-being, as well as providing
vital resources to residents and visitors. You have clearly considered the long term trends affecting the resilience
of our environment and | would advise you consider now what action you can take, as public service leaders, to
maximise your contribution to the goals. This will include how you plan, design and locate future developments
(as part of your Local Development Plan and your work with the city region), buildings, infrastructure and other
public and community spaces. What can you do, as Chief Executive, Chair or Leader, now to mitigate the effects of
our loss of environment and be more globally responsible? How can your procurement policies seek to support
local business and focus on more than economic value? How can you be more globally responsible by procuring
organic produce, Fair Trade and, where possible, cutting down on transportation in line with protecting your
environment? Forum for the Future have published reports on this and my office are working with Value Wales to
pilot new approaches to procurement in the context of the Act.

For instance, decisions made by public sector organisations around infrastructure can have an impact on
emissions, air quality and health. Although the public sector only accounts for a relatively small amount of Wales’
emissions, you are uniquely placed to influence emissions far more widely in areas such as transport, energy, land
use and procurement. Some studies suggest that continuing to delay reductions in greenhouse gas emissions
could result in a $535 trillion bill to young people alive today and future generations. The Welsh Government
recently published carbon emission levels subdivided by Local Authority and also released a Call for Evidence to
explore the most effective mechanisms for achieving a carbon neutral public sector by 2030. You will have been
invited to an event | am hosting on the 9t November, in partnership with Welsh Government and Natural

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT
cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@futuregenerations.wales
cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futuregeneration%ﬁ@ﬁ 34


http://maternalmentalhealthalliance.org/mumsandbabiesinmind/about/
http://maternalmentalhealthalliance.org/mumsandbabiesinmind/about/
https://www.forumforthefuture.org/sites/default/files/project/downloads/buying-better-world.pdf
http://gov.wales/topics/improvingservices/bettervfm/?lang=en
https://theconversation.com/inaction-on-climate-change-risks-leaving-future-generations-530-trillion-in-debt-81134
http://gov.wales/topics/environmentcountryside/climatechange/welsh-emissions/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/environmentcountryside/climatechange/welsh-emissions/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/environmentcountryside/climatechange/public-sector-decarbonisation/?lang=en

Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

Resources Wales to: explore how the public services in Wales can involve people in collaborating and integrating
their work, to take greater account of the long-term carbon implications of their activities, and help prevent the
effects of climate change becoming even worse.

On the 2" August this year, we started to use more from nature than our planet can renew in a whole year. We
are currently consuming the resources of 1.7 planets a year. Zero Carbon Britain's recent '"Making it Happen'
report sets out what responsibilities we all have to future generations to acting on climate change now. | know
you have been considering future scenarios and for each objective, I’d encourage you to think about how long
term trends can impact on all aspects of well-being. For instance, what is the economic cost of our changing
climate on Swansea? Many rely on agriculture and fisheries; some of your communities are coastal; tourism in
Wales very much utilises our natural environment. How have you considered the long-term impact of extreme
weather events on these resources? How can you use scenarios to imagine what preventative action you could
take to protect critical infrastructure, agriculture, water supplies and transportation in the event of extreme
weather? Expected annual damage to residential properties from flooding is estimated to be £22 million, so,
understanding how different weather events impact on different geographical and demographic communities is
crucial to prevention. Flooding also impacts on people’s physical and mental well-being long after the event itself,
which is difficult for those involved and inevitably costs other services.

In your well-being assessment, you have stated how communities appreciate that managing natural resources is a
shared responsibility and would like to have a say or be involved. How can you get communities themselves
involved in delivering this objective? Linked to your fourth objective, getting people involved around a place and a
common cause can be extremely powerful. Getting people outdoors with some knowledge and the
empowerment to take action can help to make the local environment more resilient. How can you facilitate this
to happen and, using the definitions of the seven well-being goals, have a bigger impact? NESTA has a guide to
working with communities to tackle climate change, including the 'Big Green Challenge', where participants
changed their lifestyles to reduce their carbon footprint. Projects such as 'Rainscape' through Dwr Cymru suggest
ways that we can all mitigate the effects of floods, and an extreme example includes the Isle of Eigg in Scotland,
where the community are having a positive impact on their environment by introducing renewable community
energy schemes, building sustainable businesses and improving biodiversity.

Collaborating with businesses in how you take steps to meet this objective will also be important to protect and
enhance the land and halt declining biodiversity. The main causes of poor air quality are urbanization and
associated deforestation, manufacturing, industry (particularly the burning of fossil fuels) and traffic levels.
Transport and energy are two of the biggest things we can influence to effect climate change. Air pollutants have
a significant effect on our health, including links to respiratory diseases, cancer and organ damage. For each of
your steps, use the definitions of the well-being goals to think about how you can do something differently to
achieve maximum impact, and look to integrate across many of your draft steps. For example, how can you
encourage agile working policies, cutting down on the use of cars? Some PSBs themselves are introducing electric
charging points and electric pool cars into their organisations to encourage this modal shift. How can you enable
corporate volunteering opportunities that seek to enhance the resilience of the natural environment? As | have
already advised, organisations themselves are looking to introduce tree planting, bee keeping and green
infrastructure for their public estates in Wales. Business in the Community has a range of practical ways for
businesses to work together and take action to help tackle some of the key environmental and social issues facing
society.

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT
cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@futuregenerations.wales

cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futuregeneratifl@gal


https://shift.newco.co/our-consumption-model-is-broken-heres-how-to-build-a-new-one-bda838cd5dde
http://zerocarbonbritain.com/images/pdfs/ZeroCarbonBritain-MakingItHappen.pdf
https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/UK-CCRA-2017-Wales-National-Summary.pdf
https://www.nesta.org.uk/sites/default/files/working_with_communities_to_tackle_climate_change.pdf
http://www.dwrcymru.com/en/My-Wastewater/RainScape/What-can-you-do-to-help.aspx
http://theconversation.com/what-other-communities-can-learn-from-this-islander-buy-out-in-scotlands-hebrides-75896
https://www.bitc.org.uk/about-us/what-we-do

Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

How can you influence the work of the city region in this respect? The Closing the Circle report on the circular
economy and the Welsh Environment by Constructing Excellence in Wales demonstrates a potential economic
opportunity of an additional £1 billion per annum by 2035 through the practical application of circular economy
principles and give practical examples in where the public sector can look to minimise waste and resources in
future projects. This is an increase of 12.5 per cent in the turnover of the Welsh built environment sector and
generates 7,300 jobs (gross). The Good Local Economies website suggests how public sector and community
organisations can work together to have multiple benefits for their areas in housing, energy, procurement,
finance and local economies.

How can planning infrastructure promote wider benefits, such as ‘solar roads’ generating renewable electricity or
roads made from recycled plastic, such as those being trialed in Rotterdam? How can this be linked to creating
green, connected community spaces to improve people’s health? The city of Freiburg is often held up as an
example of urban development that has public and active transport integrated into the heart of its design.
Besides prioritizing active transport and sustainable, affordable, reliable public transport, a traffic avoidance
strategy means it is a city of short distances, where people’s needs are met within short distances. The Shape My
Town tool from the Design Commission for Wales is an interactive resource for community place-making that
prompts you to think through some of these possibilities.

You also have a large amount of public estate and should consider its efficiency, as well as how buildings and
surroundings can impact on well-being. The Wildlife Trust in Wales report into green infrastructure outlines how
green infrastructure delivers a wide range of proven, tangible, and cost-effective economic, social and
environmental benefits. The Design Commission for Wales also has case studies and resources on design that
focuses on users, maximises energy efficiency and has been shown to significantly improve patient recovery in
health. In each of these areas my office can connect you to these people and organisations who may be able to
assist you as you develop your work.

The UK has pledged to have zero emissions by 2050 and every Welsh Government has pledged for more green
jobs. But despite Wales being a place of great potential in providing natural energy, only 10% of Wales' electricity
in 2013 was provided through renewable energy. The PSB need to be engaging with projects, such as the Tidal
Lagoon, to understand the multiple impacts and benefits. How have you considered the potential of other
renewable energy as a PSB? Last year, the National Assembly for Wales Environment and Sustainability
Committee produced 'A Smarter Energy Future for Wales', with 19 recommendations for how Wales could
transform its approach to energy. More recently, Smart Energy GB have produced a report on 'A Smart Energy
Future for Rural Areas', giving examples and case studies of rural areas across the UK who are making that
transition. The Policy Forum for Wales keynote seminar takes place on the 7t~ December this year, with a focus on
priorities for energy policy, growing the sector in Wales and increasing investment in renewables.

Evidence suggests that enabling people to make healthy choices is linked to their economic status, their
environment and how they connect with others. You have recognised this connection in your draft well-being
plan, so take action to contribute to a more resilient Wales in contributing to the other goals too. How can
improving staff well-being have wider benefits for the natural environment? Collaborating with other
organisations to explore these links is the purpose of the PSBs. As I'm sure you've recognised there are
opportunities for you to work with organisations such as the National Trust and Wildlife Trusts to develop a
county-wide approach. The Natural Resources Wales' 'Actif Woods' project is an example of getting people
outside, protecting their environment and enjoying the positive effects on health and well-being. Alternative ways

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT
cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@futuregenerations.wales
cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futuregeneration%ﬁ@ﬁ 36


http://www.cewales.org.uk/files/4214/9372/0980/Closing_the_circle_Circular_economy_Opportunity_for_the_welsh_built_environment_Report.pdf
https://goodlocaleconomies.cles.org.uk/
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/av/technology-40805733/could-solar-roads-help-generate-electricity
https://www.weforum.org/agenda/2015/07/why-plastic-roads-could-be-good-for-the-environment/
http://www.ecotippingpoints.org/our-stories/indepth/germany-freiburg-sustainability-transportation-energy-green-economy.html
http://www.shapemytown.org/
http://www.shapemytown.org/
http://www.wtwales.org/greeninfrastructure
https://dcfw.org/about/
http://www.assembly.wales/laid%20documents/cr-ld10610/cr-ld10610-e.pdf
https://www.smartenergygb.org/en/resources/press-centre/press-releases-folder/future-rural-energy
https://www.smartenergygb.org/en/resources/press-centre/press-releases-folder/future-rural-energy
http://www.policyforumforwales.co.uk/conference/energy-policy-in-Wales-2017
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=sXAqO6VW2w4

Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

of improving well-being are growing and this study, on social prescribing in Bristol, provides information on
different models and gives some insight into the improvements in mental and general physical health. The recent
BBC documentary, 'The doctor who gave up drugs', showed several examples of how alternative approaches to
prescribing pills can have a more holistic, long-lasting positive impact on someone's life — with people getting
physically fitter and healthier mentally without the reliance on prescriptions. This is inherently a preventative
approach, as the University of Essex have shown in research into volunteering with the Wildlife Trust — mental
health improved for participants after three months. Collaborating with different organisations to understand and
evaluate these methods could have a transformative effect on our current approaches to health.

There are many PSBs seeking to protect their environment including Blaenau Gwent; Caerphilly; the Vale of
Glamorgan; Powys; Carmarthenshire and Ceredigion.

e Objective 4: Strong communities — to empower communities promoting pride and belonging.

It is a meaningful aspiration to have a vibrant, tolerant and welcoming Swansea where future generations have
equal access to life opportunities and feel proud of their city. Achieving some of your other draft objectives would
clearly contribute to this vision and | feel this change definitely starts with you. As | advised in the first part of this
letter, the way you work together and deliver services eventually trickles down to the people of Swansea —
through those in your workforce, your policies, your decisions and your attitudes. Building a shared future vision
and a sense of belonging would enable you to move forward together to improve well-being for future
generations.

As | advised in my response to your well-being assessment, doing anything as a PSB must be in the context of
where and how people live. How are differences realised across communities in Swansea? What does this mean
for people’s well-being? You began to explore this during your well-being assessment and to take steps to meet
all of your objectives, you should continue to explore the data and possible reasons behind the data for issues.
Deepening your understanding of communities is best learnt from the lived experiences of people who live there.
Involving your staff, getting out and about to speak to people and collaborating with them to deliver projects is a
way of winning the trust of communities and seeing positive results. | advise each of your organisations to commit
to the National Participation Standards and, as most of us lack the skills in meaningfully engaging with a range of
people, you may wish to contact Participation Cymru, who can support your officers in gaining the skills vital for
effective and meaningful involvement. Co-production Network Wales could help you consider time banking
schemes, provide examples of good coproduction and help you to identify and engage community leaders.

Locally, how can children and young people, schools, colleges and the Town and Community Councils and the
third sector play an important role in connecting people? How are different voices represented at the PSB? WCVA
produced wider information on how the third sector play a role in contributing to the Act including resources on
the seven well-being goals. How have, or will, the assets of the area been explored beyond what public services
exist and more about the heart and soul of the community? The Centre for Regeneration Excellence Wales' 'Deep
Place' study in Tredegar gives evidence on how an understanding of place can have multiple benefits on well-
being. Giving communities that small encouragement, through for example, schemes that reward volunteering, or
small grants to create attractive community spaces can lead to much bigger outcomes - shown by the work that
‘Nurture Development' do around Asset Based Community Development. Similar work is already being done
through the Big Lottery funded Building Communities Trust across Wales. You may not know who the potential

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT
cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@futuregenerations.wales

cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futuregeneratis)ragﬂlgﬂ


http://eprints.uwe.ac.uk/23221/
http://www.bbc.co.uk/programmes/b07w52tp
https://www.theguardian.com/environment/2017/oct/02/natural-health-service-wildlife-volunteers-get-mental-health-boost
http://participation.cymru/en/
https://coproductionnetworkwales.wordpress.com/
https://www.wcva.org.uk/media/5636168/the_goals_of_the_wellbeing_of_future_generations__wales__act_2015.pdf
https://www.wcva.org.uk/media/5636168/the_goals_of_the_wellbeing_of_future_generations__wales__act_2015.pdf
http://www.regenwales.org/upload/pdf/042814110151CREW%20Deep%20Place%20Study%20April%202014.pdf
http://www.regenwales.org/upload/pdf/042814110151CREW%20Deep%20Place%20Study%20April%202014.pdf
http://www.nurturedevelopment.org/reports/
http://www.bct.wales/

Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

community leaders and connectors are in some areas, so if you are committed to this, you should re-purpose your
resources to do more work in communities, to begin to know a place as the people who live there know it.

As with other areas in Wales, there are inequalities in health, wealth and access to amenities, including green
spaces identified in your assessment. | have regularly spoken about the lack of understanding we have as public
services of people’s lived experiences. Many people do not see themselves as ‘deprived’ or ‘in poverty’, and, this
links to my advice on your objective on ensuring a best start in life. As public services, we need to take a more
human approach to providing services and the Act (and Social Services and Well-being Act) provides a common
sense lens for doing so. The recent Dying from Inequality report from the Samaritans highlighted the increased
suicide risks for those in lower-skilled jobs and living in areas of deprivation. Many could be identified at a young
age, as those with low educational attainment are often at higher risk, drawing links with your first objective
around giving children and young people the best start in life. This example of 'Why poor people don't plan long-
term' provides an insight into the barriers people face in overcoming inequality and how they are often
overlooked. Your neighbouring PSB, Bridgend, are looking at how poverty affects different parts of the population
and | feel it will also be useful to you. The Royal Town Planning Institute's report on 'Poverty, Place and Inequality’
includes several recommendations around why place-based approaches are key to tackling inequality between
and within communities.

As leaders of local agencies, you have a key role to play in promoting and supporting community

cohesiveness. The potential for your role in this area goes beyond building community capacity through
facilitating networking and coordination and providing training for community groups and employees. These
aspects of community support can only go so far in addressing the problems that people and communities

face. How are you tackling some of the systemic barriers that stop people, communities and employees from
using their training or knowledge or prevent them from accessing services that can help? Have you considered
how you could reform current services so they could deliver a preventative approach- stopping problems such as
ACEs before they happen- through commissioning these services differently? The research documented in ‘What
Works in Community Cohesion’ provides a useful reference for PSBs on the different dimensions of community
cohesion.

The City of Culture 2021 bid is an exciting opportunity for your city and, as with the city region, using the seven
well-being goals can help you to see how everyone could benefit from the investment. As a catalyst for
regeneration and economic growth, it is a reason to grow equality across the city and bring people together
around something they care about. Culture, sport and language can be incredibly powerful in bringing diverse
groups of people together to share in a common goal and create a sense of belonging. Sport Wales are keen to
work with PSBs on how they can maximise their contribution to the seven well-being goals. The Arts Council for
Wales' strategy, which outlines some of the benefits involvement in creative activity can have on the health,
cohesion and skills of the population could help you recognize how projects can have multiple benefits for your
organisations. The Cultural Commissioning Programme, funded by Arts Council England seeks to help
commissioners of public services understand how they can improve outcomes by integrating arts and cultural
activities into a range of services, including mental health and well-being, older people and place-based
commissioning. 'Cymraeg 2050' is also our common vision to growing the Welsh language. Alun Davies AM
announced funding for growing bilingual small businesses recently to increase visibility of Welsh in our
communities. Can these initiatives be connected by you as a PSB?

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT
cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@futuregenerations.wales
cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futuregeneration%ﬁ@ﬁ 38


https://www.samaritans.org/sites/default/files/kcfinder/files/Samaritans%20Dying%20from%20inequality%20report%20-%20summary.pdf
https://www.theguardian.com/society/2014/sep/21/linda-tirado-poverty-hand-to-mouth-extract
https://www.theguardian.com/society/2014/sep/21/linda-tirado-poverty-hand-to-mouth-extract
http://www.rtpi.org.uk/media/1811222/poverty_place_and_inequality.pdf
http://www.tedcantle.co.uk/publications/025%20What%20works%20in%20community%20cohesion%20Commission%20on%20Integrati.pdf
http://www.tedcantle.co.uk/publications/025%20What%20works%20in%20community%20cohesion%20Commission%20on%20Integrati.pdf
http://www.arts.wales/about-us/plans-and-strategies/inspire
http://www.arts.wales/about-us/plans-and-strategies/inspire
http://neweconomics.org/2016/05/the-art-of-commissioning/
http://gov.wales/topics/welshlanguage/welsh-language-strategy-and-policies/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/newsroom/welshlanguage/2017/support-use-of-welsh-within-small-businesses/?lang=en

Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

How are you considering how people might want to contribute to their communities in the future? This recent
report on Digital Childhoods from Barnados shows the pace at which technology is moving and the way children
now consume information. How are your organisations harnessing the power of technology to help you meet this
objective? Currently, research shows that children aged between five and 16 years spend an average of sixand a
half hours a day in front of a screen; 28% of young people use social media as their primary news source; 43% of
'millennials' are driven to make financial donations through social channels. What sort of changes might you
need to make to your organisational systems and policies to enable people to get more involved in communities
and shape local services? There is a real opportunity to engage with people that is most convenient to them and
is part of their daily life, not an additional chore."Monmouthshire Made Open" is an example of an online
platform that has anticipated how people might contribute to improving their area in the future, with
opportunities to share ideas, ask the community, start a project and seek volunteers or resources. Matthew
Gatehouse, working with Monmouthshire PSB, would be able to share their learning with you on establishing this
website.

A number of PSBs are drafting objectives to encourage safer, more cohesive and connected communities
including Flintshire; Cardiff; the Vale of Glamorgan; Newport; Powys; Cwm Taf; and Monmouthshire.

I hope you have found this advice helpful in moving forward towards publishing a well-being plan for formal
consultation. Please get in touch with my team if you want further contact details for any of the organisations
and reports mentioned in this letter.

| am also learning the best ways to advise, support and monitor how public bodies are seeking to apply the five
ways of working and maximise their contribution to the seven well-being goals, so | would welcome any feedback
from you, supporting officers and the Swansea PSB Scrutiny Committee on how | have chosen to approach this
statutory duty and the advice | have given.

I look forward to receiving further drafts of your well-being plan and please keep in touch with me and my team.

Kind regards,

Sophie Howe

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT
cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@futuregenerations.wales

cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futuregeneratifl@gal


http://www.barnardos.org.uk/get_involved/campaign/digitalchildhoods.htm
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-36528256
https://www.theguardian.com/voluntary-sector-network/2013/feb/28/charities-social-media
https://www.theguardian.com/voluntary-sector-network/2013/feb/28/charities-social-media
https://monmouthshire.madeopen.co.uk/%3E

Community Transport:
Delivering well-being for the people of Wales

g ’ Cymdeitha
» Reduces carbon emissions through » Ensures access to shops and retail Cludiant ol

encouraging people to travel together centres cymunedo,g_)

» Is part of a global community of » Helps people access work, education _‘If;':s“';‘;'r‘titc,—br

organisations providing accessible and training Associa ti°’3

and inclusive transport .
» Provides important training

and volunteer opportunities ©

» Provides transport for faith and

cultural groups A globally

responsible
Wales

A prosperous
Wales

% Provides access to sporting and

cultural events across Wales A Wales of

vibrant culture
and thriving
Welsh
: : Language
» Helps boost tourism in Wales e

A Wales of
cohesive
communities

A more equal
Wales
» Ensures people can be and feel part of

their communities

. : » Removes barriers to
» Creates new friendships through transport by ensuring fully

shared experiences : . ;
accessible and inclusive

transport regardless of
circumstances

For more information contact Christine Boston, CTA’s Director for Wales, via christine@ctauk.org



mailto:christine@ctauk.org

Case Study: Supporting Disability in Sport

Maxine lives in a rural area ;;r“

in the county of N
Carmarthenshire. Sheisa Frghs A8
2nd Dan black belt in Judo :
and is registered blind.
She represented Great
Britain at the 2004
Paralympics.

In 2016 Maxine found herself stuck for transport
in order to attend training. She contacted
Carmarthenshire Country Cars who were able to
provide a volunteer driver who took Maxine and
he{ guide dog Fisher, toJudo training in
Agmanford. Thanks to this support, Maxine could
cdhtinue her Judo classes and has competed in
the Welsh Open, European Championships and
World Championships.

Primary well-being goal (1)
Secondary contributions (2)

A globally A prosperous
responsible Wales
Wales

p

A Wales of
vibrant culture
and thriving
Welsh 2
Language

A Wales of
cohesive
communities 1

A more equal
Wales

Case Study: Supporting Coastal Access

O Drws i Drws was set up in 2002 after research

highlighted that transport was an issue for the
population of the Lleyn peninsular. The
organisation has since worked to provide
affordable transport and improve access to

services in the area. Services take disadvantaged

people from their homes to essential services
and back home.

The organisation now operates a coastal bus on
a Section 22 permit which allows access to the
coast.

Primary well-being goal (1)
Secondary contributions (2)

A globally A prosperous
responsible Wales
Wales

2

A Wales of
vibrant culture
and thriving
Welsh
Language

A Wales of
cohesive
communities

A more equal
Wales

Case Study: Supporting Good Health

Voluntary Emergency
Services Transport

= (VEST)was set up in

| 1971 to deliver coal
and wood supplies to
those who couldn't
leave their homes
during fuel shortages.

Today, the organisation provides transport for
residents of Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan
who are unable to use regular public transport.
By using our buses, hundreds of people enjoy
local trips for shopping or leisure or to meet
friends at day centres. Buses can also be booked
by local groups to take people on trips further
afield.

Primary well-being goal (1) &
Secondary contributions (2)

A globally A prosperous
responsible Wales
Wales

2

A Wales of
vibrant culture
and thriving
Welsh 2
Language

A Wales of
cohesive
communities

A more equal
Wales



Cludiant Cymunedol:
Cyflawni lles i bobl Cymru

> Lleihau allyriadau carbon drwy annog » Rhoi mynediad at siopau a g:::‘i’::thas

pobl i deithio gyda'i gilydd chanolfannau adwerthu Cymunsdol

» Yn rhan o gymuned fyd-eang o gyrff » Helpu pobl i gael mynediad at waith, Community
Transport

sy'n cynnig cludiant hygyrch a addysg a hyfforddiant

chynhwysol Association

» Cynnig cyfleoedd hyfforddi a
gwirfoddoli pwysig

» Rhoi cludiant i grwpiau ffydd a
diwylliannol Cymru sy'n
gyfrifol
» Rhoi mynediad at ar lefel fyd-eang
ddigwyddiadau chwaraeon a
diwylliannol ledled Cymru Cymru &

» Helpu i hybu twristiaeth yng byﬁ:,v;yll:;a::ae-,

Nghymru Gymraeg yn ffynnu

Cymruo
gymunedau
cydlynus

Cymru sy'n
fwy cyfartal
» Sicrhau bod pobl yn gallu bod yn rhan
o'u cymunedau ac yn teimlo’n rhan
ohonyn nhw

» Creu cyfeillgarwch newydd drwy » Cael gwared ar rwystrau i
brofiadau wedi'u rhannu gludiant drwy sicrhau bod
cludiant hollol hygyrch a
chynhwysol beth bynnag
yw'r amgylchiadau

Cewch wybod rhagor: Christine Boston, CTA’s Director for Wales, via christine@ctauk.org


mailto:christine@ctauk.org

Cefnogi Chwaraeon Anabledd

Mae Maxine yn byw mewn
ardal wledig yn sir
Gaerfyrddin. Mae ganddi
wregys du 2il Dan mewn
Jiwdo ac mae wedi'i
chofrestru’'n ddall.
Cynrychiolodd Brydain
Fawr yng Ngemau
Paralympaidd 2004. J
Yn 2016 doedd gan Maxine ddlm cludiant er
mwyn mynd i hyfforddi. Cysylltodd & Cheir Cefn
Gwlad Sir Gaerfyrddin. Cynigion nhw yrrwr
gwirfoddol a aeth & Maxine a Fisher, ei chi tywys,

i'r hyfforddiant Jiwdo yn Rhydaman.

Diglch i'r cymorth hwn, roedd Maxine yn gallu dal
at8 fynd i ddosbarthiadau Jiwdo ac mae wedi
cy:%tadlu ym Mhencampwriaethau Agored Cymru, y
Pencampwriaethau Ewropeaidd a
Phencampwriaethau'r Byd.

Nod lles cynradd (1) a
Chyfraniadau eilaidd (2)

Cymru sy’n Cymru
gyfrifol lewyrchus
ar lefel fyd-eang

2

Cymru a
diwylliant
bywiog lle mae’r
Gymraeg yn ffynnu p

2

Cymru o
gymunedau 1
cydlynus

Cymru sy’n
fwy cyfartal

Cefnogi Mynediad at yr Afordir

Sefydlwyd O Ddrws i Ddrws yn 2002 ar Ol i

ymchwil dynnu sylw at y ffaith fod cludiant yn
broblem i boblogaeth penrhyn LIyn. Ers hynny
mae'r corff wedi gweithio i gynnig cludiant
fforddiadwy ac i wella mynediad at wasanaethau
yn yr ardal. Mae'r gwasanaethau’n mynd a phobl
ddifreintiedig o'u cartrefi i wasanaethau hanfodol
acyna’n 6l adre.

Erbyn hyn mae'r corff yn rhedeg bws arfordirol
ar drwydded Adran 22 sy'n rhoi mynediad at yr
arfordir.

Nod lles cynradd (1) a
Chyfraniadau eilaidd (2)

Cymru sy’n Cymru
gyfrifol lewyrchus
ar lefel fyd-eang

Cymru a 2
diwylliant
bywiog lle mae’r
Gymraeg yn ffynnu 2

Cymru o
gymunedau
cydlynus

Cymru sy’n
fwy cyfartal

Cefnogi iechyd da

Sefydlwyd Cludiant
Gwasanaethau Brys
4 Gwirfoddol (VEST) yn
1 1971 i gyflenwi
cyflenwadau glo a
phren i rhai a oedd
yn methu gadael eu
cartrefi pan oedd

prinder tanwydd.

Heddiw, mae'r corff yn cynnig cludiant i drigolion
Caerdydd a Bro Morgannwg sy'n methu
defnyddio cludiant cyhoeddus arferol. Drwy
ddefnyddio ein bysiau, mae cannoedd o bobl yn
mwynhau teithiau lleol i siopa neu i hamddena
neu i gwrdd a ffrindiau mewn canolfannau dydd.
Hefyd mae grwpiau lleol yn gallu archebu bysiau i
fynd a phobl ar deithiau pellach.

Nod lles cynradd (1) a
Chyfraniadau eilaidd (2)

Cymru sy’n Cymru
gyfrifol lewyrchus
ar lefel fyd-eang

2

Cymru a
diwylliant
bywiog lle mae’r
Gymraeg yn ffynnu 2

2

Cymru o

gymunedau
cydlynus

Cymru sy’n
fwy cyfartal



	Agenda
	 Aelodaeth
	3 Cofnodion.
	6 Strategaeth Cynnwys.
	06 - Appendix - Standards (ALAMAGAMATED) 2

	7 Dinas Hawliau Dynol.
	8 Ymateb i lythyr Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol.
	9 Adroddiadau er gwybodaeth.
	09bii - Community Transport and the Future Generations Act (Welsh)


